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Rosinter in Brief

Rosinter Restaurants Holding is the leading casual dining restaurant company in Russia and
the CIS. Since we opened our first restaurant in Moscow in 1990, we have developed and
deployed a proven and scalable business model in the rapidly growing consumer markets in
Russia, the CIS, the Baltic states and Central Europe. As of December 31, 2009, we operated
350 outlets, including 95 franchised restaurants, in 39 cities in 9 countries, and served 15
million guests.
Rosinter’s core cuisines are Italian, Japanese and American, which are delivered under
its proprietary brands IL Patio and Planet Sushi and its licensed brand T.G.I. Friday’s. The
company also explores Russian cuisine with brands that are currently in a trial phase. In
addition, through a joint venture with Whitbread Plc, the Company is developing the Costa
Coffee chain in Russia, with 17 outlets as of December 31, 2009.
Rosinter Restaurants Holding is listed on the Russian Trading System Stock Exchange (RTS)
and Moscow Interbank Currency Exchange (MICEX) under the stock ticker “ROST”. We
reported consolidated revenues of US$263 million for the year ended December 31, 2009,
in accordance with our audited IFRS accounts.
Our strategy is to maintain our leading position in our core markets, Russia and the CIS, and
carefully target markets with proven growth potential, through both corporate and franchise
development. We are also actively developing at transportation facilities, which we believe
offer substantial growth potential for our brands. We currently have a sizeable presence at
Sheremetyevo airport in Moscow and Pulkovo airport in St Petersburg.
Our business model is built upon unmatched market experience, a highly experienced team
and an ability to react to rapidly changing market conditions. Also central to our model is
retaining guests and increasing their loyalty by continually delivering a high-quality dining
experience at an accessible price and with friendly service.
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Operational and Financial Highlights
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Locations by Brand,
Number of Restaurants
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1-2-3 Cafe: 7

Planet Sushi: 129
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Others: 29

As of December 31, 2009 and not including Costa Coffee outlets
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Geographical Presence
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Consolidated Financial Information
(US$ thousand)

Revenue *
Gross profit **
Profit from operating activities before impairment
Loss before income tax
Net loss for the year
Losses per share, US$
EBITDA ***
Adjusted EBITDA ***

2009

262,978
70,037
11,831
(2,208)
(8,433)
(0.69)
23,211
32,440

2008

336,394
99,343
12,325
(12,253)
(15,206)
(1.28)
19,422
44,112

% change****

(21.8%)
(29.5%)
(4.0%)
(82.0%)
(44.5%)
(46.1%)
19.5%
(26.5%)

*

The Group reclassified marketing revenue received from suppliers to cost of sales which in 2008 represented
US$ 4,714 thousand. See Note 3 of Financial Statements ”Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements – Change
in Accounting Policy and Disclosures”

**

The Group reclassified general restaurants expenses from selling, general and administrative expenses to cost of
sales which in 2008 represented US$ 25,124 thousand. See Note 3 of Financial Statements ”Basis of Preparation of
Financial Statements – Change in Accounting Policy and Disclosures”

*** This document contains non-IFRS measures and ratios, including EBITDA. We present EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA
because we consider them important supplemental measures of our operating performance and believe that
EBITDA measures are frequently used by securities analysts, investors and other interested parties in the evaluation
of companies in our industry. EBITDA is calculated based on profit from operating activities after impairment by
adding back depreciation and amortization expenses. Adjusted EBITDA is obtained by deducting from Gross Profit
the amount of SG&A expenses and adding back depreciation and amortization expenses. The difference between
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA is formed by expenses that management considers to be mainly non-recurrent and
one-off, including (i) Losses on disposal of non-current assets, (ii) Losses from impairment of operating assets, (iii)
Losses from impairment of advances paid, taxes recoverable and receivables, (iv) Foreign exchange losses from
operating activities, (v) Other operating income and expenses, that management believes are not part of the recurrent
Cost of sales or SG&A expenses, and (vi) Start-up expenses for new restaurants, the non-capitalized pre-opening
expenditures for new restaurants, which in management’s opinion are related mainly to revenue growth in future
periods.
**** Our operational currency is the Russian ruble (RUR), while our reporting currency is the US dollar (US$). The US$/
RUR rate has changed substantially in the past twelve months, and such movements substantially affect comparisons
of the Company’s financial results either with the corresponding period a year ago (for the profit and loss statement)
or with the beginning of the year (for the balance sheet statement). The average US$/RUR exchange rate was 31.7231
in 2009 and 24.8553 in 2008. The end-of-period US$/RUR exchange rate was 30.2442 at December 31, 2009, and
29.3804 at December 31, 2008.
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Corporate Mission

MISSION
Create a comfortable and delicious world for millions of people by allowing them to feel
at home when dining in our restaurants.

VISION
In every area where we are present, we want Rosinter brands to be the number-one choice
among casual dining restaurants for people to meet, spend their leisure time and enjoy tasty
meals. We are achieving this by following four strategic principles:

Raise the standards for the casual dining experience
Open our restaurants in the most convenient places for our guests
Serve high-quality dishes in a modern and pleasant atmosphere
Truly fulfill our guests’ needs
VALUES
We love our company and are committed to it.

LIVE: Retaining and increasing the number of loyal guests from one generation to the next.
CARE: Serving guests with all our heart and addressing our colleagues with respect.
GROW: Efficiently and profitably.
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Letter from the Chairman of the Board

Dear Shareholders and Partners,
The successful completion of the first stage of our secondary public share offering in February
2010 is a testimony to the tireless efforts of our entire team to confront and overcome the
enormous challenges faced by our business and the entire Russian marketplace in 2009.
This demonstrates both the soundness and the flexibility of our business model.
The global financial crisis hit hard during 2009, causing credit markets to dry up, reducing
consumer spending power and undermining consumer confidence. All of this led to a sharp
decline in casual dining in 2009. We reacted swiftly, reinforcing our marketing efforts to
strengthen guest traffic, cutting costs across our business, reducing investment and working
with our franchisees, suppliers and bank partners to find the best approach to a common
challenge. By the fourth quarter of 2009, we already saw a 13% rise in our quarterly
revenues in ruble terms and initial signs of a recovery in consumer activity that have been
strengthening so far in 2010. Furthermore, despite the crisis, we and our franchise partners
continued opening numerous new restaurants in highly attractive locations in 2009.
Crisis creates opportunities and on this occasion we have emerged with an even stronger
market position. In 2009, we maintained our focus on the long-term potential of our business,
while addressing and mitigating the day-to-day issues faced by our business amid a sharp
recession. Without any doubt, the combined experience of dealing with rapid growth in
2008 and the sharp slowdown in 2009 has been very useful in helping us to refocus our
business and adjust our strategy as we go forward.
We have established four priority actions. First, we will focus on three core brands – IL
Patio, Planet Sushi and T.G.I. Friday’s – while still exploring Russian cuisine and developing
the Costa Coffee brand as part of our joint venture with Whitbread. Our core brands are
among Russia’s most popular restaurant brands and have clear potential for growth in the
local consumer marketplace.
Second, we are streamlining our organization to provide better support for business
development and make our processes more efficient. This step includes the creation of
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a business development unit at the corporate level to define and lead our development
strategy. I believe that this step is very important for unlocking the full potential of our
brands in the large markets where we operate.
Third, we will continue using our franchise operations to expand our network in smaller
markets in addition to our mixed markets – Moscow and St Petersburg – while we will
concentrate our corporate development only on cities with sizeable potential, as well as
at transportation facilities. Our transportation business unit has already reached critical
mass with the addition of our operations at Terminal D at Moscow’s Sheremetyevo airport,
to our existing facilities – mainly in St Petersburg’s Pulkovo airport. We intend to benefit
from the unique opportunity to expand our brand presence in high-traffic locations that
are becoming available due to the government’s ongoing program to modernize Russia’s
extensive transportation infrastructure.
Fourth, we will reduce our support-center costs by leveraging the integrated IT backbone
that we completed at the end of 2008 and by centralizing support functions previously
managed in part by our regional hubs.
Ultimately, the number-one priority for our management team is to return to sustainable
profitability in 2010. By the end of the first quarter of 2010, we had already achieved a
positive bottom line and I believe that the strategic initiatives outlined above will help us
achieve full-year profitability. We will be harvesting the full benefit from their effects in both
our operational profit and our bottom-line in the coming years.
Our senior management team has been complemented with new talent in 2009 and early
2010. We welcomed Sergey Beshev as our new President and CEO in June 2009. Sergey
has quickly adapted his management skills to the restaurant business and demonstrated his
leadership skills, his knowledge of our marketplace and his focus on results. We are very
pleased to have him and new team members on board.
I would like to thank our all our shareholders and welcome the new investors that joined us
in the SPO for placing their trust in us and sharing our vision; our guests for their continued
loyalty despite the tough economic times in 2009; our franchise partners for committing
their business to our brands; and our team for their support and for going the extra mile
throughout a very challenging year. The support of all our stakeholders is a reminder that
we truly are a people’s company.
Yours sincerely,
Rostislav Ordovsky-Tanaevsky Blanco
Founder and Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Letter from the CEO

Dear Shareholders and Partners,
Last year was a true stress-test period for Rosinter, and it proved the stability and flexibility
of a business model deployed across nine countries. It has shown that we can both deliver
growth and provide the right responses to changing market conditions. I am pleased to
say that we were able to keep our revenue in ruble terms at similar levels, open new
restaurants and implement our key investment projects in 2009, and I am proud to say that
we achieved all of this amid a serious economic crisis and the virtual shutdown in global
credit markets.
We continued to expand our restaurant chain and accelerated the development of
our franchising system in 2009. We implemented a selective approach to opening new
restaurants in strategic locations, including our landmark agreement with Sheremetyevo
airport’s Terminal D and high-traffic locations in new retail centers in Moscow. At the same
time, we implemented successful marketing strategies and menus to drive traffic to our
restaurants, cut costs and reduced our total borrowings while improving the structure of the
debt portfolio significantly.
As a result, amid a sharp contraction in consumer demand and deterioration in overall
economic conditions, we successfully strengthened our leading position in the restaurant
market last year, and we reconfirmed our ability to provide guests with a great dining experience
at the right place and on an unrivalled scale in our core markets. We already had the right
business platform in place before the crisis, and I am pleased to say that it delivered.
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Development
While the economic crisis caused us to reassess our overall investment plans, it did not
halt our expansion. We continued to open restaurants in key locations, in line with our
longterm strategy. By the end of 2009, we had 350 restaurants in 39 cities in nine countries,
a net increase of 13 restaurants compared with 2008.
Last year, we completed the most promising investment projects that we began in 2008.
We also implemented a very detailed program for future investment and development.
We divided markets in Russia and elsewhere into clusters. Going forward, Rosinter will
develop its corporate presence in cities with a population of over one million people and
transportation facilities – mainly airports – and our franchise partners will continue playing
a very crucial role in expanding our presence in many smaller cities with clear growth
potential in addition to Moscow and St Petersburg.
We expect our franchise network to increase its share of our total network from its current
30% to 60% in the long-term. Our franchise model is well developed and delivers a level
of guest service that is indistinguishable from that at company-run locations. Our two
brands that we franchise to third parties, Planet Sushi and IL Patio, received the National
Golden Brand award in 2008 and 2009 in franchising as the most innovative brand and the
franchisor of the year, respectively, which is recognition of the winning business model that
we offer to our franchise partners.
In 2009, we won a tender to provide dining facilities for Terminal D of Moscow’s
Sheremetyevo airport. This tender was an important moment in the strategic development
of our company, and our ability to win the tender and execute the project demonstrates
that we are the only company in Russia today with the scale and local expertise to work
efficiently in complex transportation centers. By the end of last year, we had already opened
four restaurants in terminal D, while we opened five restaurants in the first quarter of 2010
and are due to open the remaining outlets in 2010
Although we scaled back many of our planned investment projects in 2009, we did not
pass up important, one-time opportunities to secure prospective, high-traffic and profitable
locations. This included opening restaurants in the Tulskaya and Metropolis retail centers in
Moscow and several regional projects.
In addition, we are leveraging our existing restaurant network to develop a food delivery
service for homes and offices. Our research shows that this service is in strong demand in
all of our markets, but remains underdeveloped. At present, food delivery accounts only for
around 4% of our turnover, but it is a rapidly growing and very promising segment.
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Brands
Last year, we made the strategic decision to focus on three main casual dining brands: IL
Patio, Planet Sushi and T.G.I. Friday’s. These brands have high levels of consumer recognition,
are well positioned in our key markets, and have the potential to be developed further. In
addition, we will still continue exploring Russian cuisine and we will continue to develop
Costa Coffee branded coffee shops as part of our joint venture with Whitbread PLC, a global
player whose international expertise combines well with our unmatched local knowledge
and relationships.

Operating in a Changing Environment
Beginning in late 2008, we shifted our focus to building revenue and guest traffic flow to
our restaurants by redefining our menu proposals to suit our guests’ new spending profiles,
to provide incentives for repeat business while also offering our guests opportunities to
trade up with quarterly promotional menus. Facing sharply reduced marketing budgets last
year, our team had to devise new ideas to deliver strong results with limited means. They
succeeded in this task, launching the highly successful “Food Money” campaign, which
provided guests with a discount coupon for their next meal, driving repeat business, as well
as a successful, market-leading lunch promotion across our brands.
We also focused on reducing costs and working with our suppliers and other partners
to find common solutions to the impact of a devalued ruble and falling guest traffic in
our restaurants. As the largest player in the market with strong R&D team, we are able to
benefit from economies of scale securing the best prices and collaboration on promotions
and marketing campaigns. We also worked with many of our leaseholders to develop
new leasing terms that were beneficial and realistic for both parties under the changing
economic conditions.
We increased the centralization of our purchasing to obtain better discounts from suppliers.
We have also reviewed each part of our menu to determine for which ingredients we
could switch to suppliers sourcing from countries with currencies that had also devalued
against the dollar and euro. The use of the “CrunchTime” IT solution for managing stock
and expenses on dishes and ingredients has enabled us to reduce spending on food and cut
wastage. The program has also facilitated our R&D work and helped us to streamline our
technology and processes to ensure that we do not overspend on ingredients for any dish.
Thanks to all these efforts and despite the crisis we managed to reduce food cost by 1.5%
of revenue in 2009 in comparison with 2008.
Finally, 2009 saw us enhance the way we measure and reward the success of our employees,
from the chefs in our restaurants to the senior management team. We introduced a unified
and precise system of key performance indicators (KPIs) and a bonus system for the entire
company.
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Cutting costs and boosting efficiency will never affect our total commitment to guest
satisfaction. Indeed, last year, we achieved growth according to the key Net Promoter Score
(NPS), an internationally recognized industry metric that measures overall guest satisfaction,
how much guests like our dishes, and their happiness with the speed and quality of our
services and the environment in our restaurants.

Outlook for 2010
Consumers in Russia and our other markets are increasingly opting to eat out because of
convenience, comfort and increasingly accessible cost. We expect this trend to continue
through 2010 and beyond.
Our strategy for 2010 focuses on productivity and profitability. We are optimizing and
orienting our operations to maximize productivity. Our primary goal is to achieve solid
profitability, and we believe that the positive trends seen in our bottom line in the first
quarter of 2010 will continue. We are also increasing our targets in terms of operations
and goals for NPS and KPIs. We are always seeking to improve our guests’ perception of
our restaurants. We will be restyling our basic concepts to anticipate changes in market
dynamics and make our concept even more attractive for guests. We will also continue to
expand with openings focused on the top-quality locations.
We passed the test of 2009 and have emerged stronger than before. We intend to make full
use of the ongoing economic recovery in Russia and neighboring CIS countries to restore
bottom-line growth and drive top-line growth by expanding our restaurant chain selectively,
supported by our internally generated cash flow in addition to the funds generated by our
successful SPO.
On a personal note, I came to Rosinter only in mid-2009, and becoming the CEO of
Russia’s number one restaurant operator has been a great honor and a welcome challenge.
As CEO, I consider my mission to be to ensure that our brands are prominent in the minds
of every member of the middle class in all countries where we operate. We should be their
first choice when they decide to dine out or order a tasty and good-value takeaway meal
for the family.
In 2010 Rosinter celebrates its 20th anniversary. I would like to congratulate and thank
our team, partners, investors, shareholders and of course all our guests, who have played
an important role in the success of our business and in our contribution to establish a
modern restaurant sector in Russia over these years. As we go into 2010, I believe that we
are stronger than ever.
Yours sincerely,
Sergey Beshev
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Financial Review

The economic climate last year was challenging, with the Company facing a drop
in same store sales in ruble terms, ruble devaluation and a tough credit environment.
Despite this, we increased net cash from operating activities by 29.1% year-on-year to
US$26.0 million and EBITDA by 19.5% to US$23.2 million, while reducing the net loss
by 44.5% to US$8.4 million. As of December 31, 2009 we had also decreased our debt
portfolio by 12.0% and improved its maturity profile, with short-term debt accounting
for 53.1% of the portfolio compared with 95.5% a year earlier.
Looking ahead into 2010, we believe that we are very well positioned to benefit from
market recovery and growth opportunities. So far, we have observed a continuing positive
trend in our same store sales and a substantial decrease in loan interest rates. In addition,
following the initial step of our secondary public offering, we reduced our debt by US$16.0
million to US$56.7 million as at March 31, 2010. From the second half of 2010, we will
be launching an active, although very selective, corporate development program.

Effect of US$/RUR Exchange Rate Movements
on Financial Results
Our operational currency is the Russian ruble (RUR), while our reporting currency is the
US dollar (US$). The US$/RUR rate has changed substantially in the past twelve months,
and such movements substantially affect comparisons of the Company’s financial results
either with the corresponding period a year ago (for the profit and loss statement) or with
the beginning of the year (for the balance sheet statement). The average US$/RUR exchange
rate was 31.7231 in 2009 and 24.8553 in 2008. The end-of-period US$/RUR exchange rate
was 30.2442 at December 31, 2009, and 29.3804 at December 31, 2008.
Our analysis of the Group’s results will mainly highlight year-on-year changes of the
relevant accounts measured as a percentage of revenues.
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Effect of New Restaurant Openings on
Operational Results
The Group opened 100 new corporate restaurants in 2008 and 21 in 2009. Many of these
opened when the crisis was unfolding. The management believes that the crisis negatively
affected both initial revenues and revenue growth for most of these new restaurants. Given
that the number of new restaurants accounted for a substantial part of the corporate portfolio
in 2009 and that certain restaurant expenses like payroll, rent, utilities and depreciation
have fixed components, the management believes that certain restaurant expenses as a
percentage of total revenues have been negatively affected.

Subsequent Event
On February 17, 2010, the Group announced a secondary offering (the “Offering”)
of the Company’s ordinary shares to be completed in two stages. In the first stage, RIG
Restaurants Limited, the Parent, placed 2,619,048 shares at US$10.5 per share, totaling
US$27,500 thousand, before fees and expenses. The Parent will use all of the net proceeds
to subscribe and pay for new shares of the Company. In March, the Group received from
the Parent a bridge loan of US$26,196 thousand bearing interest of 14.1% per annum and
maturing in March 2011.
The second stage of the Offering is an open subscription under Russian law for up to
4,274,877 new shares at an offer price of US$10.5 per share. This was approved on April 1
by the General Meeting of Shareholders and submitted on April 12 to the Federal Financial
Markets Service (FFMS) for approval. Assuming that all of the new shares offered are issued,
they will represent around 26.2% of the Company’s enlarged share capital.
On March 9, during the first stage of the secondary offering, the Group bought back
400,000 shares from the Parent at a price of US$10.5, totaling US$4,200 thousand. These
shares will be accounted for as treasury shares and will be used to hedge future share-based
compensation programs for the management.
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P&L HIGHLIGHTS
(US$ thousand)

FY 2009

% change
Y-o-Y

FY 2008

262,978

100,0%

336,394

100.0%

(21.8%)

247,648

94.2%

314,285

93.4%

(21.2%)

6,011

2.3%

8,730

2.6%

(31.1%)

Gross profit

70,037

26.6%

99,343

29.5%

(29.5%)

Operating profit before Impairment

11,831

4.5%

12,325

3.7%

(4.0%)

(1,386)

Net revenue
Incl. revenue from restaurants and canteens
Incl. revenue from franchising

(0.5%)

(5,683)

(1.7%)

(75.6%)

Operating profit

10,445

4.0%

6,642

2.0%

57.3%

EBITDA

23,211

8.8%

19,422

5.8%

19.5%

Net loss

(8,433)

(3.2%)

(15,206)

(4.5%)

(44.5%)

Losses from impairment of operating assets

*

The Group reclassified marketing revenue received from suppliers to cost of sales which in 2008 represented US$
4,714 thousand. See Note 3 of Financial Statements ”Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements – Change in
Accounting Policy and Disclosures”

**

The Group reclassified general restaurants expenses from selling, general and administrative expenses to cost of
sales which in 2008 represented US$ 25,124 thousand. See Note 3 of Financial Statements ”Basis of Preparation of
Financial Statements – Change in Accounting Policy and Disclosures”

REVENUE PERFORMANCE
(US$ thousand)
Revenue from restaurants and canteens

FY 2009
247,648

FY 2008

94.2%

314,285

% change
Y-o-Y

93.4%

(21.2%)

Franchise revenue

6,011

2.3%

8,730

2.6%

(31.1%)

Sublease services and other services

5,103

1.9%

5,267

1.6%

(3.1%)

Sales of semi-finished products to franchisees

2,561

1.0%

3,984

1.2%

(35.7%)

Other services

1,655

0.6%

4,128

1.2%

(59.9%)

Total revenue

262,978

100.0%

336,394

100.0%

(21.8%)

In 2009, Group revenues were flat year-on-year at RUR8,342 million In US$, our reporting
currency, we posted net revenues of US$262,978 thousand, down 21.8% year-on-year in
US$ terms (including a devaluation effect of approximately 21.6%). The almost flat topline growth was the positive result of a strong focus on driving guest traffic to our network
and a wider base of restaurants operating in 2009 compared with 2008 (105 net openings
in 2008). This helped to offset the negative effect in our ruble denominated revenues of a
15.4% decline in same store sales.
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COST OF SALES AND GROSS MARGIN PERFORMANCE
(US$ thousand)

FY 2009

FY 2008

% change
Y-o-Y

Food and beverages

60,530

23.0%

82,387

24.5%

(26.5%)

(26.5%) Payroll and related taxes

53,838

20.5%

69,416

20.6%

(22.4%)

Rent

41,415

15.7%

40,677

12.1%

1.8%

Restaurant equipment depreciation

10,706

4.1%

10,149

3.0%

5.5%

Utilities

8,951

3.4%

8,617

2.6%

3.9%

Laundry and sanitary control

3,911

1.5%

4,726

1.4%

(17.2%)

Materials

3,734

1.4%

6,042

1.8%

(38.2%)

Maintenance and repair services

3,259

1.2%

4,576

1.4%

(28.8%)

Other services

2,889

1.1%

4,612

1.4%

(37.4%)

Franchising fee

1,584

0.6%

1,742

0.5%

(9.1%)

Transportation services

1,409

0.5%

2,456

0.7%

(42.6%)

715

0.3%

1,651

0.5%

(56.7%)

192,941

73.4%

237,051

70.5%

(18.6%)

70,037

26.6%

99,343

29.5%

(29.5%)

Other expenses
Total cost of Sales
Gross profit

The gross profit margin only declined 2.9 percentage points as a share of revenues, from
29.5% in 2008 to 26.6% in 2009. This was achieved despite a decline in same store sales
and that a significant part of our restaurant portfolio consisted of new units opened late 2008
or early 2009 whose performance was negatively affected by the crisis. In an effort to reduce
the potential decline of the gross margin in 2009, the management took action.
A thorough revision of the menu and supply chain management allowed for savings in
food and beverage costs of 1.5% of revenues, after offsetting the food cost inflation in first
half of 2009 due to ruble devaluation.
Adjustments to headcount and more efficient scheduling of restaurant personnel at each
unit allowed us to keep payroll and related taxes almost flat as a percentage of revenues,
offsetting the combined negative effects of the drop in same store sales and the usually
higher labor costs (in percentage terms) of the new units, which represent a substantial
share of our portfolio. We also actively renegotiated our rent contracts, especially for
newly opened restaurants. However, the rent savings achieved only partially offset the
combined negative effect of ruble devaluation on contracts denominated in US$ and
the fall in revenues. As a result, rent as a percentage of revenues increased by 3.6%.
Depreciation increased by 1.1% year-on-year in 2009 and utilities by 0.8% as a percentage
of total revenues, mainly due to the combined effect of a drop in same store sales and the
high share of new units in our portfolio.

ROSINTER RESTAURANTS HOLDING

Annual Report 2009

Financial Review

19

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (SG&A)
(US$ thousand)

FY 2009

R% change
Y-o-Y

FY 2008

24,013

9.1%

31 614

9.4%

(24.0%)

Rent

6,919

2.6%

6,848

2.0%

1.0%

Advertising

4,847

1.8%

10,415

3.1%

(53.5%)

Other services

2,812

1.1%

4,504

1.3%

(37.6%)

Depreciation and amortization

2,060

0.8%

2,631

0.8%

(21.7%)

Financial and legal services

1,406

0.5%

1,858

0.6%

(24.3%)

Bank services

1,059

0.4%

1,109

0.3%

(4.5%)

Utilities

945

0.4%

1,259

0.4%

(24.9%)

Transportation services

771

0.3%

264

0.1%

192.0%

Materials

748

0.3%

1,267

0.4%

(41.0%)

Maintenance and repair services

724

0.3%

881

0.3%

(17.8%)

Laundry and sanitary control

561

0.2%

927

0.3%

(39.5%)

3,498

1.3%

4,434

1.3%

(21.1%)

50,363

19.2%

68,011

20.2%

(25.9%)

Payroll and related taxes

Other expenses
Total SG&A expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 1.0% as a percentage of revenues,
from 20.2% in 2008 to 19.2% in 2009, thanks to our efforts to reduce expenses. In 2009,
we substantially reduced our marketing budget and generated a saving in our advertising
expenses of 1.3% of revenues. We also reduced personnel in our support services which
contributed to a 0.3% saving in payroll and related taxes. Rent increased by 0.6% as a
percentage of revenues due to ruble devaluation on US$-denominated contracts and the
decrease in revenues.
OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
FY 2008

% change
Y-o-Y

(2,187) (0.8%)

(12,415) (3.7%)

(82.4%)

Increase in the allowance for impairment of advances
paid, taxes recoverable and receivables

(687) (0.3%)

(1,391) (0.4%)

(50.6%)

Other operating income

1,059

0.6%

(46.2%

(US$ thousand)
Start-up expenses for new restaurants

FY 2009

0.4%

1,969

Losses on disposal of non-current assets

(3,030) (1.2%)

(2,957) (0.9%)

2.5%

Other operating expenses

(2,904) (1.1%)

(4,598) (1.4%)

(36.8%)

(94)

0.0%

385

0.1%

n/a

Operating profit before impairment

11,831

4.5%

12,325

3.7%

(4.0%)

Losses from impairment of operating assets

(1,386) (0.5%)

(5,683) (1.7%)

(75.6%)

Operating profit

10,445

2.0%

57.3%

Foreign exchange (losses)/gains from operating activities, net
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The operating margin increased to 4.0% from 2.0% due to two factors: a 0.8% improvement
in operating margin before impairment and a 1.2% reduction of losses from impairment. The
improvement of operating margin before impairment resulted mainly from the combined
effect of a 2.9% decline in the gross margin, a 1.0% improvement in selling, general and
administrative expenses, and a 2.9% reduction in start-up expenses, driven by a decrease
in the number of corporate outlets opened in 2009 as compared to 2008.
EBITDA* PERFORMANCE
(US$ thousand)

% change
Y-o-Y

FY 2009

FY 2008

Operating profit

10,445

6,642

57.3%)

Depreciation and amortization

12,766

12,780

(0.1%)

EBITDA*

23,211

19,422

19.5%

8.8%

5.8%

70,037

99,343

(29.5%)

(50,363)

(68,011)

(25.9%)

Depreciation and amortization

12,766

12,780

(0.1%)

Adjusted EBITDA*

32,440

44,112

(26.5%)

12.3%

13.1%

EBITDA* Margin, %
Gross profit
SG&A

Adjusted EBITDA* margin, %

* This document contains non-IFRS measures and ratios, including EBITDA. We present EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA
because we consider them important supplemental measures of our operating performance and believe that EBITDA
measures are frequently used by securities analysts, investors and other interested parties in the evaluation of companies
in our industry. EBITDA is calculated based on profits from operating activities after impairment by adding back
depreciation and amortization expenses. Adjusted EBITDA is obtained by deducting SG&A expenses from gross profit
and adding back depreciation and amortization expenses. The difference between EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA is
formed by expenses that we consider to be mainly non-recurrent and one-off, including (i) losses on disposal of noncurrent assets, (ii) losses from impairment of operating assets, (iii) losses from impairment of advances paid, taxes
recoverable and receivables, (iv) foreign exchange losses from operating activities, (v) other operating income and
expenses that the management believes are not part of the recurrent cost of sales or SG&A expenses, and (vi) startup expenses for new restaurants, the non-capitalized pre-opening expenditures for new restaurants, which in the
management’s opinion are related mainly to revenue growth in future periods.

The EBITDA margin increased to 8.8% in 2009, from 5.8% in 2008, while the adjusted
EBITDA margin decreased to 12.3% in 2009, from 13.1% in 2008. The difference in the
trend between the dynamics of these was due mainly to changes in start-up expenses for
new restaurants, which decreased to 0.8% of revenues in 2009, from 3.7% in 2008, and in
losses from impairment of operating assets, which decreased to 0.5% of revenues in 2009,
from 1.7% in 2008.
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NON-OPERATING EXPENSES AND INCOME TAX
(US$ thousand)

FY 2009

10,445

4.0%

(10,308)

(3.9%)

(1,807)

(0.7%)

(6,711)

(538)

(0.2%)

–

0.0%

Loss before tax

(2,208)

(0.8%)

Income tax

(6,225)

(2.4%)

Current income tax

(5,002)

(1.9%)

Deferred income tax

(1,223)

(8,433)

Operating profit
Financial expenses, net
Foreign exchange losses from financial ativities, net
Share of losses of JV and associates
Losses from impairment of goodwill

Net loss

% change
Y-o-Y

FY 2008

6 642

2.0%

57.3%

(10,453) (3.1%)

(1.4%)

(2.0%)

(73.1%)

(1,279)

(0.4%)

(57.9%)

(452)

(0.1%)

n/a

(12,253)

(3.6%)

(82.0%)

(2,953) (0.9%)

110.8%

(5,050)

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%))

2,097

0.6%

n/a

(3.2)%

(15,206)

(4.5%)

(44.5%)

A more stable US$/RUR rate in 2009 compared with 2008 led to a 1.3% reduction of
foreign exchange losses from financial activities as a percentage of revenues. Taxes increased
by 1.5% as a percentage of revenues due to losses at various Russian entities that cannot be
offset against profits at other Russian entities and losses at non-Russian entities where there
is uncertainty as to whether they can be utilized in the future (See Note 19 to our financial
statements, “Income Tax”).

Liquidity, Capital Expenditures
and Debt Highlights
CASH FLOW PERFORMANCE
(US$ thousand)
Net cash flow from operating activities

FY 2009

FY 2008

% change
Y-o-Y

25,990

20,136

29.1%

9,652

3,485

177.0%

(13,353)

(12,313)

8.4%

Net cash flow used in investing activities

(16,543)

(49,712)

(66.7%)

Net cash used in/from financing activities

(11,229)

27,657

n/a

Incl. change in working capital
Incl. interest and income tax paid

(407)

(184)

121.2%

(2,189)

(2,103)

4.1%

Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of the year

5,934

8,037

(26.2%)

Cash & cash equivalents at end of the year

3,745

5,934

(36.9%)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash & cash equivalents
Net decrease in cash & cash equivalents

* The Group changed the presentation of income tax, interest paid and interest received in the consolidated statement
of cash flows as compared to the presentation in the 2008 consolidated financial statements. See Note 3 of Financial
Statements ”Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements – Change in Accounting Policy and Disclosures”
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Reducing debt and improving its maturity profile was one of our key targets for 2009.
Accordingly, we limited our corporate development to a very selective portfolio, which
included restaurants that were already under construction by the end of 2008 and a few
strategic locations, including 11 outlets in Terminal D at Moscow’s Sheremetyevo airport.
We also substantially improved our working capital management. Thanks to this combined
effort, we were able to reduce our debt while improving its maturity profile.
Net cash flow provided by operating activities increased by 29.1% to US$25,990 thousand
in 2009, from US$20,136 thousand in 2008. This was driven mainly by an increase of 2.5%
in cash from operations (net of financial expenses and taxes) to US$29,691 thousand in
2009, from US$28,964 thousand in 2008, as well as by an increase in cash from working
capital to US$9,652 thousand from US$3,485 thousand in 2008, stemming mainly from
improved conditions from suppliers.
Net cash flow used in investing activities decreased 66.7% to US$16,543 thousand in
2009, from US$49,712thousand in 2008, as a result of lower corporate development
activity and a fall in investments in acquisitions. In 2009, the Group opened 21 new
corporate outlets, compared with adding 100 in 2008. As a result, net investments in
PP&E fell to US$9,363 thousand in 2009, from US$36,425 thousand in 2008, while
net investments in acquiring subsidiaries and establishing joint ventures decreased to
US$1,962 thousand from US$24,174 thousand in 2008. In addition, cash flow from
investing activities was influenced by net movements in loans issued to related and third
parties, which amounted to an outflow of US$4,465 thousand in 2009, compared with an
inflow of US$14,323 thousand in 2008, driven by loan repayments by related parties.
Net cash flow used in financing activities amounted to US$11,229 thousand in 2009,
compared with net cash generation of US$27,657 thousand in 2008. This was mainly the
effect of (i) a net repayment of bank loans totaling US$8,712 thousand, (ii) a net payment
to partners of US$ 1,976 thousand, and (iii) a repayment of lease obligations of US$ 532
thousand. Net cash flow from operating activities and net cash flow from investing activities
together with 36.9% reduction in cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year provided
US$ 11,229 thousand for financing activity in 2009.
DEBT AND LIQUIDITY
(US$ thousand)
Total gross debt
Short-term debt
Current portion of long-term debt
Long-term debt
Net debt
Net debt/EBITDA

ROSINTER RESTAURANTS HOLDING

31 Dec 2009

31 Dec 2008

72,748

100.0%

82,702

100.0%

31,547

43.36%

44,721

54.07%

7,103

9.76%

34,293

41.47%

34,098

46.9%

3,688

4.5%

69,003

76,768

2.97x

3.95x

% change
Y-o-Y
(12.0%)

(10.1%)
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By December 31, 2009, the Group had achieved a substantially better liquidity position
compared with a year earlier. This was due to a decrease in the net debt/EBITDA ratio to
2.97, from 3.95, and a decrease in the short-term debt component to 53.1%, compared
with 95.5% at December 31, 2008.
Total gross debt decreased by 12.0% to US$72,748 thousand at December 31, 2008. In
addition, last year the Group signed agreements for a series of loans that improved the debt
portfolio maturity profile. These included a new loan agreement with Sberbank, totaling
950 million rubles (US$31.4 million) and maturing in June 2012, to cover the repayment
of bonds in accordance with the early redemption option, and several additional long-term
loans, mainly from Raiffeisenbank and Credit Europe Bank.
Some information in this review may contain “forward-looking statements”, which include
all statements other than statements of historical fact. Such forward-looking statements
can often be identified by words such as “plans”, “believes”, “anticipates”, “expects”,
“intends”, “estimates”, “will”, “may”, “continue”, “should” and similar expressions. Such
forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other
important factors beyond the Company’s and/or its management control that could cause
the actual results, performance or achievements of the Company to be materially different
from future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forwardlooking statements. Such forward-looking statements are based on numerous assumptions
regarding the Company’s present and future business strategies and the environment in
which the Company will operate in the future. By their nature, forward-looking statements
involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on circumstances
that may or may not occur in the future. These forward-looking statements speak only as
at the date as of which they are made, and the Company and/or its management does not
intend and has no duty or obligation to supplement, amend, update or revise any of the
forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any change in the Company’s and/
or its management expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions
or circumstances on which any such statements are based. The information and opinions
contained in this review are provided as at the date of this review and are subject to change
by the Company’s own discretion without notice of any kind and form.
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Social Responsibility

As a good corporate citizen we aim to make a positive contribution for our guests,
partners, employees and the wider communities where we work. Our business is built
around well-known brands that offer some of the most popular cuisines in our markets,
providing valued choices for our growing guest base. Together with our franchise partners,
we are actively expanding our brand coverage, providing great career opportunities in the
restaurant business and growing reliable business opportunities to our partners. We are also
committed to supporting numerous initiatives regularly, both within the Company and in
the communities we serve.

Our Work Environment
We are committed to creating a positive and exciting work environment that attracts and
retains the best people at every level of the business.
Motivation – A harmonious work atmosphere that motivates members and treats them with
respect is a key competitive advantage in attracting and retaining a quality workforce.
Contribution – Our work processes have been optimized steadily over the years, meaning
that each member today plays an even more important role in our overall success.
Communication – We place great importance on sharing information between the office
and restaurant teams and throughout the organization, and we strongly encourage two-way
communication.
Comfort – We have designed the work spaces in our restaurants to make employees
comfortable, while our kitchens and restaurants have been carefully designed to maximize
safety and efficiency.

Training and Mentoring
While many Russian companies are now setting up their own corporate universities, we
have run our own Training and Development Center since the Company was founded. It
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is designed to train new employees to the highest international standards of service, and
provides classes for furthering the qualifications of existing team members.
Development – We are committed to providing all team members with the opportunity to
reach their full potential within Rosinter. Training, mentoring and further education is provided
to help each member excel. We recognize and reward outstanding employee performance
and loyalty, and this has helped us build the strongest team in the restaurant industry.
Mentor support – One of the most effective means of training is through mentoring by
fellow members. Managers greet each new employee and introduce them to their team and
a mentor, who is an experienced employee with proven leadership skills. The mentors help
orient new team members with our extensive training program. This ensures that all new
team members work to the best of their abilities and have a complete understanding of their
job responsibilities.
Recognition – Outstanding employees are regularly singled out for recognition, and events
for top performing members are held at both the corporate and restaurant level. Our most
successful employees are honored each year at our “Best of the Best” award ceremony,
which brings together team members from across our growing geography. We especially
value team members who have stayed with us over the years, and we acknowledge those
who have served five, ten or fifteen years at annual Company Day celebrations.
Innovation – Rosinter continues to work with the innovative educational company RMA,
under the auspices of the Russian State Academy of Management, to run the Management
in the Restaurant Business and Club Industry program. This provides further education and
training for the best-performing employees and those who have graduated from our Training
and Development Center with top results.
Special programs – We also launched a Company-wide step-by-step coaching program
open to employees at all levels. The coaching uses the program “Business Beyond the Box”
by business trainer John O’Keeffe. In addition to professional coaches, restaurant and office
managers take part in the program, which has been implemented in all areas of Rosinter’s
business.

Communication and Sharing Best Practices
Best practice sharing – We value our open corporate culture at Rosinter and seek to
share best practices that can help all our team members improve their performance. Our
employees offer a wealth of experience gained in our diverse and challenging markets, and
we are always looking to tap their expertise and foster communications across the Group.
Corporate newspaper – For more than 15 years, we have been publishing our corporate
newspaper, ROSINFO Review, in both Russian and English. It is distributed to all our
restaurants. In addition, our intranet is accessible in all regions where we do business.
Access to CEO – Any employee can contact directly the President at any time via a special
e-mail address. The most frequently asked questions are answered in our ROSINFO Review
newspaper.
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Food Safety
Reputation for product quality and safety standards – We value our reputation for providing
high-quality, fresh and delicious products. We take food-safety issues very seriously and are
a leader in working with regulators to develop rigorous food-safety standards in Russia and
the CIS. All our team members are required to complete a food-safety program and ongoing
training work. We follow rigorous hygienic and sanitary procedures at all our restaurants.
Every one of our company-owned and franchise restaurants is required to meet both local
regulations and international food safety and quality assurance standards.
Work to introduce EU standards into the local industry – In 2009, we completed work
to adapt the Hazard Analysis Critical Control Points (HACCP) program to local sanitary
standards in Russia. HACCP protocols are incorporated in European Union legislation and
are applied by most international restaurant chains. The program provides strict guidelines
for the correct handling, preparation and storage of food products. To ensure that foodsafety standards are maintained, our store managers carry out comprehensive audits on a
quarterly basis.

Community Action
“Charity Instead of Souvenirs” program in Russia – Our Company is a responsible corporate
citizen and our team members feel responsible for the communities where we live. In 2009,
we continued to participate in the initiative, funds that companies and organizations usually
spend on gifts for partners and colleagues are donated to help less privileged members of
society, including orphans, the disabled, the chronically ill and the elderly.
Maria’s Children arts rehabilitation center – We have supported the center over the last ten
years. Maria’s Children is one of our favorite charities and brings art, painting, dancing and
singing to children in orphanages. Most importantly, it helps them to explore the world and
expand their horizons. Our restaurants hold an annual exhibition of children’s art, which is
then auctioned to our customers. The funds raised are donated to Maria’s Children.
Radio station Mayak’s nationwide program about healthy nutrition – In another initiative
in 2009, we worked with Russian radio station Mayak on a nationwide program about
healthy nutrition. For six months, top radio presenters on Mayak reminded viewers during
special game programs about the importance of a correct, balanced diet, using dishes
available at Rosinter’s restaurant chains as examples.
“Three Steps to a Dream” – During the year, we also continued to sponsor the “Three
Steps to a Dream” competition for talented students interested in social sciences. As a result
of a three-part competition, the most gifted high-school seniors receive the opportunity to
enter a prestigious Russian institute of higher learning, such as the Moscow State Institute
for International Relations (MGIMO), without taking an entrance exam. In addition, our
Chairman provides a grant for meals from Rosinter’s restaurants and cafes located at the
institution.
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Share Capital

Our shares are listed on the Russian Trading System Stock Exchange (RTS) and the
Moscow Interbank Currency Exchange (MICEX) under the ticker symbol “ROST”. We
strive to maximize our information transparency and communicate with the investment
community proactively in the interests of both effective corporate governance and
maximizing the liquidity of our securities. We also retain an independent share registrar and
we announce all significant operational and financial information that might potentially
affect the market value of the Company’s securities. As part of our day-to-day Investor
Relations work, we maintain an up-to-date database of all investors who have asked us to
provide them with the latest news concerning developments at our Company.
As of December 31, 2009, the share capital of Rosinter Restaurants Holding consisted of
12,030,457 ordinary shares with a nominal value of 169.7 rubles each. As of December
31, 2009, approximately 61.27% of the shares were beneficially owned by the Company’s
founder and its Chairman of the Board, Rostislav Ordovsky-Tanaevsky Blanco. Also, as at
December 31, 2009, Clarsfield Limited, a fully-owned subsidiary of Rosinter Restaurants
Holding, owned 1.22% of the company shares. These shares have been designated to
hedge a future employee stock option plan (ESOP) that is currently under consideration.

Share price Performance
Our June 2007 IPO free float consisted of 25.975% of our issued share capital. In the
IPO, the shares sold for US$32.0 each, giving the Company a value of around US$385
million. At the end of 2009, the share price on the RTS stood at US$8.00, equaling a market
capitalization of around US$96.2 million. The one-day closing share-price high for the year
of US$8.50 on the RTS was reached on October 26. Our relatively thin trading volumes and
pricing volatility are linked to low liquidity. We believe the secondary share issue will help
us increase our liquidity in 2010.
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The historical performance of any stock is not a guide to future performance, and current
and potential investors should seek independent advice before making investment decisions.
The investor relations area of our corporate website (www.rosinter.com) provides a list of
independent analysts who cover our Company.
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Dividend Policy
Our dividend policy is based on the belief that the reinvestment of profits to fund the
continued growth of our business represents the best long-term return on investment for all
shareholders. We have not paid any dividends in the past and do not expect to do so for the
foreseeable future, given the capital requirements of our business and current development
strategy.
Any future payment of dividends must be recommended by our Board of Directors and
approved by our General Meeting of Shareholders, in line with our Corporate Charter.
In addition, our ability to pay dividends is also governed by Russian legislation and is
dependent upon the receipt of dividends and other distributions from our subsidiaries.
By law, any future dividends for Rosinter Restaurants Holding have to be paid from the
company’s net profit according to Russian Accounting Standards (RAS).
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Management and Corporate Governance

Our corporate governance system has been developed in accordance with both Russian
and international best business practices, the Russian Law on Joint Stock Companies, the
Company Charter and internal policies, as well as all other applicable laws and regulations.
We believe that a strong corporate governance system enhances the shareholder value of
our Company and helps us run our business more efficiently.

Shareholders’ General Meeting
The annual General Shareholders’ Meeting is the Company’s supreme management body
and consists of all shareholders. It is empowered to make decisions regarding the main
business issues, including the composition of the Board of Directors, amendments to the
Charter and approval of major transactions. The Company’s main decision-making bodies
are the annual General Shareholders’ Meeting, the Board of Directors and the President.
In 2009, the Company conducted one annual general meeting and one extraordinary
meeting (absentee voting), which was required to approve major transactions – mainly bank
financing – in line with Russian legislation.

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for the strategic management of the Company and
consists of seven members, including five independent members. It held four ordinary
meetings in 2009, one every quarter. There were also approximately ten extraordinary
meetings to discuss issues regarding the Company’s development plans and to approve
certain transactions.
While retaining overall responsibility, the Board of Directors assigns certain specific duties
to its two permanent committees: the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
In 2009, no new committees were formed.
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Audit Committee The Audit Committee is tasked with supervising our financial, management
and tax accounting. It is also responsible for appointing and dismissing external auditors.
At the request of the Board, the Audit Committee examines Company activities such as
distribution of profit, evaluation of property, internal risk management, and both large-scale
and secondary transactions.
The Board of Directors appoints the Audit Committee from among its members. The current
Audit Committee was appointed in June 2009 and consists of three members: Mr. Marcus
Rhodes (Chairman), Mr. David Fitzjohn and Mr. Vladimir Mekhrishvili.
Remuneration Committee The Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining
the compensation and benefits for members of the Board of Directors, the Internal Audit
Committee and senior management. It also determines the criteria for the candidates for the
Board of Directors, President and other executive offices, and monitors and evaluates the
performance of those in senior positions, including the President.
The Board of Directors appoints the Remuneration Committee from among its members.
The current Remuneration Committee was appointed in June 2009 and consists of three
members: Mr. David Fitzjohn (Chairman), Mr. Tony Hughes and Mr. Vitaly Podolski.

President
The President is the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chairman of the Management
Board. On an operational basis, the Board of Directors delegates the day-to-day running of
the company to the CEO, with the exception of certain clearly defined activities, which are
controlled by the Board. The President’s main role consists of the yearly preparation of both
a three-year strategic plan and an Annual Operating Plan, and then presenting them to the
Board of Directors for approval. In addition, the President prepares a quarterly briefing for
the Board of Directors on the Company’s financial performance, which is measured against
the approved Annual Operating Plan. The President is appointed by the Board of Directors.

Management Board
The Management Board is appointed by the Board of Directors. It assists the CEO in the
operational management of the company. The Management Board has two levels and holds
regular meetings twice a month. The upper level consists of the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) and the General Counsel. The lower level consists of all other people reporting
directly to the CEO.
The Management Board’s responsibilities include approving organizational improvements,
implementing personnel policy and analyzing the Company’s financial activity. Meanwhile,
both authoritative and approval/signing responsibilities are clearly enumerated in a
document that is maintained by the Legal Department. This defines the authority of the
Board of Directors, the President and other managers. It also defines the activities and
expenditure limits for each level of the Company. This is an important internal control tool
that sets the standard by which audits can be completed.
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Members of the Board of Directors
Rostislav Ordovsky-Tanaevsky Blanco

Founder and Chairman
of the Board

Mr. Ordovsky-Tanaevsky Blanco is the founder of the Company and is its principal
beneficial shareholder. Since 1990, he has played an active role in creating a modern
restaurant market in Russia, and has supported the establishment of the Federation of
Restaurateurs and Hoteliers of the Russian Federation. He previously acted as the exclusive
Kodak representative and distributor in the CIS from 1988 to 1995, which developed into a
CIS-wide distribution network with over 400 photography stores.
Mr. Ordovsky-Tanaevsky Blanco graduated from Simon Bolivar University (Venezuela) in
1981 with a specialization in chemical engineering.
Pedro Mario Burelli

Vice-Chairman of the Board

Mr. Burelli has been an advisor to Mr. Ordovsky-Tanaevsky Blanco since 1992, and joined
Rosinter in 1997 as a Non-Executive Director. Mr. Burelli is the Managing Partner of B+V
Consulting, a strategic planning consulting firm. Mr. Burelli has served as a member of
the Executive Board of Petroleos de Venezuela (PDVSA) from 1996 to 1999. In addition,
he worked at JPMorgan from 1986 to 1996, where he held numerous positions, including
Head of Latin America for JPMorgan Capital Corporation, Senior Banker for the Andes,
Central America and Caribbean Region, and Director of Mergers and Acquisitions for the
Iberian Peninsula.
Mr. Burelli holds a BA from the University of Southern California (USA) and an MPA from
the Kennedy School of Government at Harvard University (USA).
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David Fitzjohn

Member of the Board,
Chairman of Remuneration
Committee,
Member of Audit Committee
Mr. Fitzjohn joined Rosinter in 2006 as a Non-Executive Director, and is currently the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Previously, Mr. Fitzjohn was the Managing
Director at Yum! Brands Inc. Europe, which includes such brands as KFC, Pizza Hut and
Taco Bell Restaurants. In addition, he has held numerous executive management positions
at Burger King, as well as at retailers Grand Metropolitan and Laura Ashley.
Mr. Fitzjohn graduated from Reading University (UK) with a B.S. in Estate Management
and an M. Phil. in Environmental Planning. He is a Fellow of The Royal Institution of Charted
Surveyors and a Fellow of the Royal Society of Arts in the UK.
Marcus J. Rhodes

Member of the Board,
Chairman of Audit Committee

Mr. Marcus Rhodes became a member of the Board of Directors in July 2009. He has
20 years of audit experience working with a wide range of companies in consumer products,
retail, manufacturing and mining in several countries, including Russia and Poland. From
2002 to 2008, he acted as an audit partner for Ernst & Young. Mr. Rhodes also serves as an
Independent Director at Wimm-Bill-Dann Foods (since 2008) and Cherkizovo Group (since
February 2009).
Mr. Rhodes earned a BA degree (Hons) in Economics from Loughborough University in
England in 1982 and a certificate from the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales in 1986.
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Vladimir Mekhrishvili

Member of the Board,
Member of Audit Committee

Mr. Mekhrishvili joined the Company as Financial Director in 1992 and has served as
Executive Director ever since. Mr. Mekhrishvili joined the Board of Directors in 1998 and
the Audit Committee in 2006. Since 2005, he has been a member of the Association of
Independent Directors. Before joining the Company, he was the Deputy General Director
for economics at the State Factory of Electronics and Computer Technologies, and served as
the Regional Financial Director for the Marco Polo international hotel chain.
Mr. Mekhrishvili graduated from Tbilisi State University (Georgia) with a specialization in
economics.
Vitaly Podolsky

Member of the Board, Member
of Remuneration Committee

Mr. Podolsky joined the Company in 2008 as Independent Director. He started his career
at A.T. Kearney and became Senior Banking Associate at Bankers Trust International PLC.
Mr. Podolsky also worked for Ford Motor Company and Ford Europe. He served as CFO
of Perekrestok and X5 Retail Group, Russia’s largest public food retailer in terms of sales.
Since January 2008, he has held the position of Advisor to the Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of X5 Development and X5 Retail Group. Since 2008 Mr. Podolsky
has also participated actively in the turnaround of two Russian companies.
Mr. Podolsky graduated from Moscow State University and earned an MBA in International
Business and Finance from Chicago University.
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Tony Hughes

Member of the Board, Member
of Remuneration Committee

Mr. Hughes joined the Company in 2008 as Independent Director. He has extensive
experience in the restaurant business and held numerous management positions at
Stanneylands. Mr. Hughes worked for Whitbread as Operations Director of Beefeater, as
well as MD of T.G.I. Friday’s and Group Service Quality Director. He also served as MD of
Bass Restaurant Division. In 2002 he was appointed to the Board of Mitchell’s & Butlers. He
retired in December 2007 and took a non-executive directorship in The Restaurant Group.
Mr. Hughes attended Hollings College (Manchester).
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Management
Sergey Beshev

President and Chief Executive
Officer, Chairman of the
Management Board

Sergey Beshev was appointed President of Rosinter Restaurants Holding in June 2009.
Before joining the Company, he worked in Russia’s telecommunications industry, where he
gained substantial managerial experience. Mr. Beshev served as director of MTS Moscow
from 2007 to March 2009 and commercial director of Akado from 2005 to 2007. He was
also director of marketing and then commercial director at MegaFon Moscow from 2001
to 2005. Before this, from 1997 to 2001, he worked as a business development manager at
Motorola, in both the headquarters in Germany and the representative office in Moscow.
He began his career as a consultant at Deloitte & Touche in 1996.
Mr. Beshev graduated with a degree in systems engineering from the Moscow Institute of
Aviation and a degree in economics from the Plekhanov Academy of Economics. He also
holds an MBA.
Victor Shlepov

Senior Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer,
Member of the Management
Board
Victor Shlepov was appointed Chief Financial Officer of Rosinter Restaurants Holding
in February 2010. His previous positions include Head of Finance and Administration in
the Mosmart hypermarket chain (Russia) and CFO of the Kopeyka retail chain (Russia). In
2005-06, he was ranked among the top 100 CFOs in Russia by the Russian Association of
Management.
Mr. Shlepov graduated from Moscow State University in 2001. He holds an MA in
Management and a BSc in Economics.
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Giulio D’Erme

Senior Vice President,
Marketing

Giulio D’Erme has been at the Company since 2007. Prior to joining Rosinter, he worked
in various positions at Philip Morris, Nike and Indesit.
Mr. D’Erme has completed programs at the IEDC-Bled School of Management (formerly
the International Executive Development Center) in Ljubljana (Slovenia) and the American
University of Rome and holds a degree in Business Administration.
Michael Beacham

Senior Vice President,
Chief Development Officer

Michael Beacham joined Rosinter in March 2010. In 2008-09, he was Senior VicePresident and COO of franchising and international business for CEC Entertainment, the
popular USA Chuck E. Cheese’s family entertainment brand. Previously, he successfully
led the development of T.G.I. Friday’s restaurants of Carlson Restaurants Worldwide for
five years.
Mr. Beacham graduated from George Washington University in 1988. He served as
Adjunct Professor at Gibbs Colleges (Piscataway/Montclair, NJ) and Raritan Community
College (Somerset, NJ) from 1993 to 1999.
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Sergey Zaitsev

Vice President, Real Estate

Sergey Zaitsev joined Rosinter Restaurants in 1997 as General Manager of a subsidiary in
Novosibirsk. In 2006, he was appointed Development Director of Rosinter Restaurants. He
has been working as General Manager for the Company since February 2009.
Mr. Zaitsev graduated from Novosibirsk State Academy of Water Transport in 1981. He
received a Master of Science degree from the same academy in 1986. He is an assistant
professor and author of publications and inventions in the field of mechanical engineering
and power generating systems.
Svetlana Knyazeva

Vice President, Franchising

Svetlana Knyazeva joined Rosinter Restaurants in 2002 as International Counsel. After
heading the Legal Department from 2003 to 2007, she became Director of Franchising.
Prior to joining the Company, she served as in-house counsel for Sun Chemical Moscow
Printing Inks and other companies. She was also a lecturer at the Russian Academy of
Foreign Trade from 2001 to 2004.
Ms Knyazeva received her law degree, with honors, from Moscow State University.
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Dmitry Timofeev

Legal Director,
Corporate Secretary,
Member of the Management
Board
Dmitry Timofeev joined Rosinter Restaurants in September 2007. Before coming to
Rosinter Restaurants, he held similar positions at Dixy Group and other companies. He has
also practiced law at a private firm.
Mr. Timofeyev received his law degree from Moscow State University in 2000.
Grigory Konstantinov

Human Resources Director

Grigory Konstantinov joined Rosinter Restaurants in 2008. He has 10 years of experience
working in HR at the Eaton Corporation and Bristol-Myers Squibb.
In 1993, Mr. Konstantinov received his bachelor’s degree from Moscow State Institute
of International Relations, where he majored in Politics and International Relations. In
1998, he received a Master’s in Labor and Industrial Relations and Political Science from
the University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign (USA).
Alexei Sokolov

Supply Chain Management
Diector

Alexei Sokolov joined Rosinter Restaurants in 2008 and has substantial experience of
procurement and logistics systems in large organizations. Before his incorporation to Rosinter,
he held senior positions at companies including British American Tobacco and Eldorado.
Mr. Sokolov received a degree in geography and geo-ecology from St Petersburg
University in 1998.
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Vladislav Rogov

Chief Executive Officer
of Costa Coffee JV

Vlad Rogov joined the company in 1993. Through his career in Rosinter he has held
several positions which include being the first Brand Manager for our Japanese concept
Planet Sushi and the Director of our Moscow operations.
Mr. Rogov has a Diploma in Management from Academy of National Economy (Moscow)
Valeria Silina

Public Relations Director

Valeria Silina joined Rosinter Restaurants in 2002. Before joining the Company, she
worked at various periodicals as a journalist and editor and at Image Holding, a full-cycle
PR agency. In 2006, she was named one of the top 100 Directors of Community and
Corporate Relations in the “Sales and Production of Consumer Goods” category by the
Russian Association of Managers.
In 1990, Ms. Silina graduated from the Publishing and Journalism Faculty of Moscow State
University of Printing. She received a Master’s in Business Administration from the Higher
School of Business of Moscow State University in 2004.
Amin Muci

Investor Relations Director

Amin Muci joined Rosinter Restaurants in May 2003. He has 12 years of experience in
investment banking and corporate finance in Latin America and Central Africa.
Mr. Muci graduated with a degree in Mathematics from Simon Bolivar University
(Venezuela) and holds an MBA with specialty in finance from IESA (Venezuela).
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Independent auditors’ report
To the shareholders of OJSC Rosinter Restaurants Holding
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of OJSC Rosinter Restaurants
Holding and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2009 and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of cash flows and consolidated statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.
Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group as at December 31, 2009, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
May 17, 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at December 31, 2009
(All amounts are in thousands of US dollars)
Notes
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Investments in joint ventures and associates
Long-term loans due from related parties
Long-term advances to related parties
Long-term receivables due from related parties
Deferred income tax asset
Other non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Advances paid
VAT and other taxes recoverable
Trade and other receivables
Short-term loans
Short-term loans due from related parties
Receivables from related parties
Cash and cash equivalents
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital
Additional paid-in capital
Share premium
Treasury shares
Accumulated losses
Translation difference
TOTAL PARENT SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Non-controlling interests
TOTAL EQUITY
Non-current liabilities
Long-term debt due to related parties
Long-term debt
Finance lease liabilities
Long-term liabilities to partners
Deferred revenue
Deferred income tax liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short-term debt
Current portion of long-term debt
Payables to related parties
Income tax payable
Current portion of finance lease liabilities
Current liabilities to partners
Deferred revenue
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

December 31,
2009

December 31,
2008

7
6
5
8
16
16
16
19

78,873
10,784
4,671
917
4,753
5,470
1,255
2,701
4,603
114,027

85,942
14,683
4,808
1,490
875
8,133
1,120
4,335
4,996
126,382

9
10

6,625
4,451
3,574
3,194
80
2,359
2,457
3,745
26,485
140,512

6,459
5,458
4,863
3,495
171
2,702
2,105
5,934
31,187
157,569

13
13
13
13

71,847
14,886
46,698
(8,608)
(121,164)
(1,316)
2,343
1,096
3,439

71,847
14,886
46,698
(8,608)
(108,733)
1,267
17,357
1,344
18,701

16
17
18
15

814
34,098
12
4,149
1,542
2,586
43,201

814
3,688
143
5,187
2,282
2,727
14,841

46,765
31,547
7,103
1,477
2,731
144
3,397
708
93,872
140,512

36,499
44,721
34,293
1,945
1,254
369
4,338
608
124,027
157,569

11
16
16
12

19

20
21
21
16
18
15

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended December 31, 2009
(all amounts are in thousands of US dollars, except for earnings per share)
Notes

2009

2008

Revenue

22

262,978

336,394

Cost of sales

23

(192,941)

(237,051)

70,037

99,343

(50,363)

(68,011)

(2,187)

(12,415)

(687)

(1,391)

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

24

Start-up expenses for new restaurants
Increase in the allowance for impairment of advances paid, taxes
recoverable and receivables
Other gains

26

1,059

1,969

Other losses

26

(5,934)

(7,555)

(94)

385

11,831

12,325

(1,386)

(5,683)

10,445

6,642

Foreign exchange (losses)/gains from operating activities, net
Profit from operating activities before impairment
Losses from impairment of operating assets

28

Profit from operating activities after impairment
Financial income

27

670

1,583

Financial expense

27

(10,978)

(12,036)

(1,807)

(6,711)

8

(538)

(1,279)

28

–

(452)

(2,208)

(12,253)

(6,225)

(2,953)

(8,433)

(15,206)

(8,254)

(15,190)

(179)

(16)

(0,69)

(1,28)

Foreign exchange losses from financial activities, net
Share of losses of joint venture and associates
Losses from impairment of goodwill
Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

19

Net loss for the year
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent entity
Non-controlling interests
Losses per share, basic and diluted, US dollars

13

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended December 31, 2009
(all amounts are in thousands of US dollars, except for earnings per share)
2009

2008

Net loss for the year

(8,433)

(15,206)

Exchange differences on translation from functional to presentation currency

(2,597)

(2,685)

(35)

(372)

Share of exchange differences of associates and joint ventures
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax

(2,632)

(3,057)

Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax

(11,065)

(18,263)

(10,837)

(17,925)

(228)

(338)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent entity
Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended December 31, 2009
(All amounts are in thousands of US dollars)
Notes

2009

2008

Operating activities
Loss before tax

(2,208)

(12,253)

12,766

12,780

1,901

6,326

Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation
Foreign exchange losses
Financial income

27

(670)

(1,583)

Financial expense

27

10,978

12,036

Allowance for impairment of advances paid, taxes recoverable and
receivables

24

687

1,391

210

(104)

Allowance for impairment of inventories
Loss on disposal of non-current assets

26

3,030

2,957

Impairment of assets

28

1,386

6,135

8

538

1,279

1,073

–

29,691

28,964

Increase in inventories

(611)

(1,277)

Decrease/(increase) in advances, taxes recoverable, receivables
and other non-current assets

1,445

(7,258)

Share of joint venture’s and associates’ results
Write off and impairment of loans receivable from related parties
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in receivables from/payables to related parties, net

(937)

1,630

Increase in trade and other payables

9,755

10,390

Net cash generated from operations

39,343

32,449

Interest paid

(10,147)

(8,835)

Interest received

121

1,147

Income tax paid

(3,327)

(4,625)

Net cash flows from operating activities

25,990

20,136

Purchases of property and equipment

(9,655)

(36,772)

Loans issued to related parties

(4,548)

(5,289)

Prepayments to acquire subsidiaries

(1,968)

(10,428)

(753)

(3,436)

292

347

83

2,111

Proceeds from sale of shares in subsidiaries

6

1,634

Issuance of loans to third parties

–

(2,027)

Proceeds from repayment of loans issued to related parties

–

19,528

Investing activities

Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Proceeds from repayment of loans issued to third parties

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired

5

–

(12,381)

Contribution to a joint venture

8

–

(2,999)

(16,543)

(49,712)

Net cash flows used in investing activities
Continued on the next page
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
(All amounts are in thousands of US dollars)

Notes

2009

2008

107,701

139,930

Financing activities
Proceeds from bank loans *
Repayment of bank loans *

(116,413)

(106,036)

Amounts paid to partners

15

(2,090)

(6,685)

Proceeds from partners

15

114

1,706

Repayment of lease obligations

(532)

(759)

Dividends paid to shareholders

(9)

–

–

(300)

–

(199)

(11,229)

27,657

(407)

(184)

Repayment of related party loans
Payment to acquire ownership interest in subsidiaries from partners
Net cash flows used in/from financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

15

(2,189)

(2,103)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

5,934

8,037

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

3,745

5,934

* The Group uses financing which, due to the short term nature of this debt (i.e. 3 to 11 months), requires repayment and
reissuance several times throughout the year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended December 31, 2009
(All amounts are in thousands of US dollars)
Attributable to equity holders of the parent entity
Share
capital

Additional
paid-in
capital

71,847

Net loss for the year

14,886

46,698

(8,608)

(93,543)

4,002

35,282

–

35,282

–

–

–

–

(15,190)

–

(15,190)

(16)

(15,206)

Other comprehensive loss for the
year

–

–

–

–

–

(2,735)

(2,735)

(322)

(3,057)

Total comprehensive loss for the year

–

–

–

–

(15,190)

(2,735)

(17,925)

(338)

(18,263)

Non-controlling interests arising on
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 5)

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

1,682

1,682

71,847

14,886

46,698

(8,608)

(108,733)

1,267

17,357

1,344

18,701

Net loss for the year

–

–

–

–

(8,254)

–

(8,254)

(179)

(8,433)

Other comprehensive loss for the year

–

–

–

–

–

(2,583)

(2,583)

(49)

(2,632)

Total comprehensive loss for the year

–

–

–

–

(8,254)

(2,583)

(10,837)

(228)

(11,065)

Purchase of non-controlling interest
in a subsidiary (Note 14)

–

–

–

–

(4,177)

–

(4,177)

–

(4,177)

Dividends

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(20)

(20)

71,847

14,886

46,698

(8,608)

(121,164)

(1,316)

2,343

1,096

3,439

At December 31, 2008

At December 31, 2009

Translation
difference

Noncontrolling
interests

Treasury
shares

At December 31, 2007

Accumulated
losses

Parent
shareholder’s
equity

Share
premium

Total
Equity
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008
(All amounts are in thousands of US dollars, unless specified otherwise)

1. Corporate Information
OJSC Rosinter Restaurants Holding (the “Company”) was registered as a Russian open joint
stock company on May 24, 2004. The registered and headquarter address of the Company is at 7
Dushinskaya str., Moscow, 111024, Russia. As of December 31, 2009, the Company’s controlling
shareholder was RIG Restaurants Limited, a limited liability company (the “Parent”) (formerly known
as Rostik Restaurants Limited) incorporated under the laws of Cyprus. RIG Restaurants Limited is
under the ultimate control of Mr. Rostislav Ordovsky-Tanaevsky Blanco.
OJSC Rosinter Restaurants Holding and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is the leading casual dining
operator in Russia and CIS both by number of restaurants and by revenue. The Group’s business
is focused on serving the most popular cuisines in Russia: Italian, Japanese, American and local
Russian cuisine.
The Group derives approximately 90% of its revenues from restaurant business sales:
• most of the Group’s restaurants operate under its core proprietary trademarks: “IL Patio pizza
pasta grill”, “Planet Sushi”, “American Bar and Grill”, “Café Des Artistes”, “Pechki-Lavochki”
and “1 2 3 Café”.
• other restaurants operate under licensed trademarks: “T.G.I. Friday’s”, “Sibirskaya Korona” and
“Benihana”.
Other revenue of the Group represents revenue from the network of independent franchisees in
Moscow and throughout Russia and the CIS, sublease and other services, revenues from canteens
and from sales of semi-finished products.
The Group’s principal business activities are concentrated within the Russian Federation, but
it also operates in Ukraine, Belarus, Kazakhstan, Latvia, Czech Republic, Poland and Hungary.
The Group also has exclusive development rights and/or registered trademarks in Azerbaijan,
Kyrgyzstan, Uzbekistan, Moldova, Lithuania, Estonia, Austria, Slovenia, Slovakia, Romania, Croatia,
Macedonia, Bulgaria, Serbia and Montenegro.
The Group was formed during 2004 to 2006 through a reorganization of entities under common
control of the Parent, in which the shares of the subsidiaries were contributed into the share capital
of the Company.
On June 2007, the Parent sold 3,125,000 ordinary shares of the Company during the Initial Public
Offering for a cash consideration of $100,000. At the same time, the Company issued and sold
2,030,457 new shares to the Parent at a price of $29.55 per share. The nominal price of the shares
issued was 169.7 Russian roubles ($6.55 at the transaction date exchange rate). The shares of the
Company sold by the Parent were admitted for trading on the Russian Trading System Stock Exchange
and afterwards on MICEX.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2009 were
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on May 14, 2010.
The Group derives revenue in the territory of Russia and other CIS countries, Baltic States and
other European countries. For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the revenues from
the Russian market were approximately 83% and 81% of total revenues, respectively. The second
largest market was Kazakhstan with 5% of total revenues for 2009 and 2008.
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Group employed approximately 8,050 and 8,200 people,
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
1. Corporate Information (continued)

The Company had a controlling ownership interest, directly or indirectly, in the following principal
subsidiaries:
Entity

Country of
incorporation

2009

2008

% Ownership

% Ownership

Rosinter Restaurants LLC

Russia

98.70%

98.70%

Rosinter Restaurants Novosibirsk LLC

Russia

100.00%

100.00%

Rosinter Restaurants Samara LLC

Russia

100.00%

51.00%

Rosinter Restaurants Perm LLC

Russia

51.00%

51.00%

Rosinter Restaurants Ekaterinburg LLC

Russia

51.00%

51.00%

BelRosInter LLC

Belarus

100.00%

100.00%

Rosinter Almaty LLP

Kazakhstan

90.00%

90.00%

Rosinter Ukraine LLC

Ukraine

51.00%

51.00%

RIGS Services Limited

Cyprus

100.00%

100.00%

Rosinter Czech Republic s.r.o.
Rosinter Polska Sp. z o.o.
Rosinter Hungary Kft

The Czech Republic

100.00%

100.00%

Poland

100.00%

100.00%

Hungary

100.00%

100.00%

During 2009, the Group opened 21 new restaurants and closed 29 restaurants. During 2008, the
Group opened 100 new restaurants and closed 6 restaurants. In addition, the Group continues to
develop a casual dining restaurant business on a franchise agreement basis. The Group opened
25 and closed 4 franchise restaurants in Moscow city, Moscow region and Russian regions in
2009. The Group opened 16 and closed 5 franchise restaurants in Moscow, Russian regions and
Baltic countries in 2008. As of December 31, 2009, the Group operated 350 restaurants.
2. Going Concern
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis that
contemplates the realisation of assets and satisfaction of liabilities and commitments in the normal
course of business.
The Group’s current liabilities as of December 31, 2009 of $93,872 exceeded its current assets
by $67,387. The net current liability position primarily results from bank loans in the amount of
$34,719, bonds payable in the total amount of $3,931 with a maturity date of November 26, 2010
and trade and other payables.
Group management believes that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis due to the following:
• The business strategy of the Group allows generating significant operating cash flows. In 2009
and 2008, the Group generated $25,990 and $20,136 of net cash from operating activities,
respectively. The Group is expecting for 2010 positive operating cash flows in the range of
prior years’ operating cash flows mainly due to the fact that new restaurants opened recently
are mostly maturing in 2009 and 2010. An additional positive impact on cash flows comes
from all 2009 efficiency initiatives that start showing an impact in 2010.
• On February 17, 2010, the Group announced a secondary offering of the Company’s ordinary
shares in the amount of up to 4,274,877 shares and the offer price has been set at $10.5 per
share for the total amount of up to $44,886. In March 2010, during the first step of the offering
the Group received from the Parent a bridge loan for the shares in the amount of $26,196 (refer
to Note 31).
• Out of $72,748 total debt (at December 31, 2009), the Group has extended Sberbank loans
in the amount of $14,879 till February 2011 and has repaid $19,525 to other banks in March
and April 2010. At May 14, 2010, the amount of short-term debt was $28,072 which was
comparable with the amount of projected cash flows from operating activities for 2010. In
2010, the Group renegotiated all loan agreements and reduced average cost of financing from
16.05% as at December 31, 2009 to 11.92% as at May 14, 2010 (refer to Notes 17, 21).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
2. Going Concern (continued)
These consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability
and classification of recorded asset amounts or to amounts and classification of liabilities that might
be necessary if such additional resources are not available and the Group is unable to continue as
a going concern.
3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting
Standard Board (“IASB”).

Basis of Preparation
Group companies maintain their accounting records and prepare their statutory financial statements
in accordance with the Regulations on Accounting and Reporting of the country in which they
are incorporated and registered. Accounting policies and financial reporting procedures in these
jurisdictions may differ substantially from those generally accepted under IFRS. Accordingly, the
accompanying financial statements, which have been prepared from the Group’s statutory based
accounting records, reflect adjustments and reclassifications necessary for such financial statements
to be presented in accordance with the standards and interpretations prescribed by the IASB.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except as disclosed in the accounting policies in Note 4.
As discussed above, the Group was formed through the reorganization of entities under common
control using the pooling of interests method. Assets and liabilities were recognised using the
carrying value of the predecessor companies.

Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except
that the Group has adopted new/revised standards and interpretations mandatory for financial
years beginning on or after January 1, 2009 as described below, and has made the reclassifications
in the 2008 comparative numbers as follows:
Extract from Consolidated Income Statement
2008
As reported
Revenue *
Cost of sales *, **
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses **
Start-up expenses for new restaurants ***
Allowance for impairment of advances paid, taxes recoverable
and receivables ***

Reclassifications

2008
As reclassified

341,108

(4,714)

336,394

(216,641)

(20,410)

(237,051)

124,467

(25,124)

99,343

(106,941)

38,930

(68,011)

–

(12,415)

(12,415)

–

(1,391)

(1,391)

Other gains

1,969

–

1,969

Other losses

(7,555)

–

(7,555)

385

–

385

12,325

–

12,325

Foreign exchange gains from operating activities, net
Profit from operating activities before impairment
*

The Group reclassified marketing revenue received from suppliers to cost of sales.

**

The Group reclassified general restaurants expenses from selling, general and administrative expenses to cost of sales.

*** The Group reclassified start-up expenses for new restaurants and allowance for impairment of advances paid, taxes
recoverable, receivables from selling, general and administrative expenses to separate lines.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements (continued)

Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures (continued)
Extract from Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
2008
As reported

Reclassifications

2008
As reclassified

Operating activities
Net loss for the year /Loss before tax*

(15,206)

2,953

(12,253)

(2,097)

2.097

–

Increase in trade and other payables*

10,815

(425)

10,390

Net cash generated from operations

27,824

4,625

32,449

Interest paid*

–

(8,835)

(8,835)

Interest received*

–

1,147

1,147

Income tax paid*

–

(4,625)

(4,625)

27,824

(7,688)

20,136

1,082

(1,082)

–

65

(65)

–

(48,565)

(1,147)

(49,712)

Bank interest paid

(8,835)

8,835

–

Net cash from financing activities

18,822

8,835

27,657

Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Deferred income tax benefit*
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Net cash from operating activities
Interest received from loans issued to related parties
Interest received from bank deposit
Net cash from investing activities

* The Group changed the presentation of income tax, interest paid and interest received in the consolidated statement of
cash flows as compared to the presentation in the 2008 consolidated financial statements.

The above described reclassifications provide reliable and more relevant information compared to
peers in the industry.
The new/revised standards and interpretations mandatory for financial year beginning on or after
January 1, 2009 are the following:
•

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations effective January 1, 2009;

•

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment: Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions effective
January 1, 2010 (early adopted);

•

IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Revised) and IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
(Amended) effective July 1, 2009 (early adopted) including consequential amendments to IFRS 7,
IAS 21, IAS 28, IAS 31 and IAS 39;

•

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures effective January 1, 2009;

•

IFRS 8 Operating Segments effective January 1, 2009;

•
•

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements effective January 1, 2009;
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and IAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation effective January 1, 2009;
IFRIC 9 Remeasurement of Embedded Derivatives and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement effective for periods ending on or after June 30, 2009;
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation effective October 1, 2008;
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers effective July 1, 2009 (early adopted);
Improvements to IFRSs (April 2009, early adopted).

•
•
•
•
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements (continued)

Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures (continued)
When the adoption of the standard or interpretation is deemed to have an impact on the financial
statements or performance of the Group, its impact is described below:
IFRS 2 Share-based Payment (Revised)
The IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 2 which clarifies the definition of vesting conditions and
prescribes the treatment for an award that is cancelled. The amendment did not have an impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.
The IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 2 that clarified the scope and the accounting for group
cash-settled share-based payment transactions. The amendment did not have an impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Revised) and IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements (Amended)
The Group adopted the revised IFRS 3 from January 1, 2009. IFRS 3 (Revised) introduces significant
changes in the accounting for business combinations occurring after this date. Changes affect the
valuation of non-controlling interest, the accounting for transaction costs, the initial recognition
and subsequent measurement of a contingent consideration and business combinations achieved
in stages. These changes will impact the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the
period that an acquisition occurs and future reported results.
IAS 27 (Amended) requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of
control) is accounted for as a transaction with owners in their capacity as owners. Therefore, such
transactions will no longer give rise to goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore,
the amended standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as
the loss of control of a subsidiary. The changes by IFRS 3 (Revised) and IAS 27 (Amended) will affect
future acquisitions or loss of control of subsidiaries and transactions with non-controlling interests.
The change in accounting policy was applied prospectively and had no impact on earnings/
(losses) per share.
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
The amended standard requires additional disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity
risk. Fair value measurements related to items recorded at fair value are to be disclosed by source
of inputs using a three level fair value hierarchy, by class, for all financial instruments recognised at
fair value. In addition, a reconciliation between the beginning and ending balance for level 3 fair
value measurements is now required, as well as significant transfers between levels in the fair value
hierarchy. The amendments also clarify the requirements for liquidity risk disclosures with respect
to derivative transactions and assets used for liquidity management. The fair value measurement
disclosures are presented in Note 30. The liquidity risk disclosures are not significantly impacted
by the amendments and are presented in Note 30.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements (continued)

Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures (continued)
IFRS 8 Operating Segments
IFRS 8 replaced IAS 14 Segment Reporting upon its effective date. This standard requires disclosure
of information about the Group’s operating segments. All operating segments of the Group are
identified on the basis of internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the Group’s top management
and represent Moscow business unit, Regional business unit and European business unit. These
operating segments are aggregated into a single reporting segment as they have similar economic
characteristics and the segments are similar in the nature of the products, services and production
processes, the type of customers of their products and services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Adoption of IFRS 8 did not have any effect on the financial position or performance
of the Group.
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
The revised standard separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes
in equity includes only details of transactions with owners, with non-owner changes in equity
presented in a reconciliation of each component of equity. In addition, the standard introduces
the statement of comprehensive income: it presents all items of recognised income and expense,
either in one single statement, or in two linked statements. The Group has elected to present two
statements.
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and IAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation
The standards have been amended to allow a limited scope exception for puttable financial
instruments to be classified as equity if they fulfill a number of specified criteria. The adoption of
these amendments did not have any impact on the financial position or the performance of the
Group.
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement
This amendment to IFRIC 9 requires an entity to assess whether an embedded derivative must be
separated from a host contract when the entity reclassifies a hybrid financial asset out of the fair
value through profit or loss category. This assessment is to be made based on circumstances that
existed on the later of the date the entity first became a party to the contract and the date of any
contract amendments that significantly change the cash flows of the contract. IAS 39 now states
that if an embedded derivative cannot be reliably measured, the entire hybrid instrument must
remain classified as at fair value through profit or loss. The adoption of these amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or the performance of the Group.
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
The Interpretation is to be applied prospectively. IFRIC 16 provides guidance on the accounting
for a hedge of a net investment. As such it provides guidance on identifying the foreign currency
risks that qualify for hedge accounting in the hedge of a net investment, where within the group
the hedging instruments can be held in the hedge of a net investment and how an entity should
determine the amount of foreign currency gain or loss, relating to both the net investment and the
hedging instrument, to be recycled on disposal of the net investment. The Group has concluded
that the amendment will have no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group, as
the Group has not entered into any such hedges.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements (continued)

Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures (continued)
Improvements to IFRSs
In April 2009 the IASB issued omnibus of amendments to its standards, primarily with a view to
removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. There are separate transitional provisions for each
standard. The adoption of the following amendments resulted in changes to accounting policies but
did not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
• IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations: clarifies that the
disclosures required in respect of non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for
sale or discontinued operations are only those set out in IFRS 5. The disclosure requirements
of other IFRSs only apply if specifically required for such non-current assets or discontinued
operations.
• IFRS 8 Operating Segment Information: clarifies that segment assets and liabilities need only be
reported when those assets and liabilities are included in measures that are used by the chief
operating decision maker. All operating segments of the Group are identified on the basis of
internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the Group's top management and represent Moscow
business unit, Regional business unit and European business unit. These operating segments are
aggregated into a single reporting segment as they have similar economic characteristics and the
segments are similar in the nature of the products, services and production processes, the type of
customers of their products and services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Adoption
of IFRS 8 did not have any effect on the financial position or performance of the Group.
• IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Explicitly states that only expenditure that results in recognising
an asset can be classified as a cash flow from investing activities.
• IAS 18 Revenue: The Board has added guidance (which accompanies the standard) to determine
whether an entity is acting as a principal or as an agent. The features to consider are whether
the entity:
• Has primary responsibility for providing the goods or service
• Has inventory risk
• Has discretion in establishing prices
• Bears the credit risk
The Group has assessed its revenue arrangements against these criteria and concluded that it
is acting as principal in all arrangements. The revenue recognition accounting policy has been
updated accordingly.
• IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosures of Government Assistance: Loans
granted with no or low interest will not be exempt from the requirement to impute interest.
Interest is to be imputed on loans granted with below-market interest rates. This amendment
did not impact the Group.
• IAS 36 Impairment of Assets: The amendment clarified that the largest unit permitted for
allocating goodwill, acquired in a business combination, is the operating segment as defined in
IFRS 8 before aggregation for reporting purposes. The amendment has no impact on the Group
as the annual impairment test is performed before aggregation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
3. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements (continued)

Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures (continued)
Other amendments resulting from Improvements to IFRSs to the following standards did not have
any impact on the accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Group:
• IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
• IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
• IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
• IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Error
• IAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period
• IAS 19 Employee Benefits
• IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
• IAS 28 Investments in Associates
• IAS 31 Interest in Joint Ventures
• IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting
• IAS 38 Intangible Assets
• IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
• IAS 40 Investment Properties
• IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
• IFRIC 16 Hedge of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
The Group has not applied the following IFRS and IFRIC Interpretation that have been issued but
are not yet effective:
• IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items
(Amendment)
• IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – Eligible Hedged Items
The amendment clarifies that an entity is permitted to designate a portion of the fair value changes
or cash flow variability of a financial instrument as a hedged item. This also covers the designation
of inflation as a hedged risk or portion in particular situations.
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
The interpretation provides guidance on accounting for arrangements whereby an entity distributes
non-cash assets to shareholders either as a distribution of reserves or as dividends.
The Group plans to apply standards and interpretations not yet effective for annual periods
beginning on or after their effective dates.
The Group expects that the adoption of the pronouncements listed above will have no significant
impact on the Group's results of operations and financial position in the period of initial
application.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates

Principles of Consolidation
Subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group has an interest of more than one half of
the voting rights, or otherwise has power to exercise control over their operations. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are no longer
consolidated from the date that control ceases. All intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Where necessary, accounting policies for subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
Business Combinations and Goodwill
Business Combinations from January 1, 2009
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date
fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business
combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs incurred are
expensed.
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date
through profit and loss.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is
deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as
equity, it shall not be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the consideration transferred over the
Group’s net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating units that are expected to benefit
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned
to those units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Principles of Consolidation (continued)
Business Combinations prior to December 31, 2008
Business combinations, including business combinations involving entities or businesses under
common control, were accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition was
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination were
measured initially at fair values at the date of acquisition, irrespective of the extent of any noncontrolling interest (formerly known as minority interest).

Investments in Associates
Associates are entities in which the Group generally has between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights, or is otherwise able to exercise significant influence, but which it does not control or jointly
control. Investments in associates are accounted for under the equity method and are initially
recognised at cost, including goodwill. Subsequent changes in the carrying value reflect the postacquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate. The Group’s share of its
associates’ profits or losses is recognised in the income statement, its share of movements in reserves
is recognised in equity and its share of the net assets of associates is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position. However, when the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless the Group
is obliged to make further payments to, or on behalf of, the associate.
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the associates; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
The share of profits or losses of associates is shown on the face of the income statement. These
are the profits or losses attributable to equity holders of the associates and therefore are profits
or losses after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associates. The financial
statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company.

Interests in Joint Ventures
The Group’s interest in a joint venture which is a jointly controlled entity is accounted for using
the equity method of accounting until the date on which the Group ceases to have joint control
over the joint venture. When the Group contributes or sells assets to the joint venture, any portion
of gain or loss from the transaction is recognised based on the substance of the transaction. When
the Group purchases assets from the joint venture, the Group does not recognise its share of the
profit of the joint venture from the transaction until it resells the assets to an independent party.
The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the
parent company.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The Group has chosen the US dollar as the presentation currency as being more convenient
for the major current and potential users of the consolidated financial statements. All financial
information presented in USD has been rounded to the nearest thousand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Functional and Presentation Currency (continued)
The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries located in the Russian Federation
is the Russian rouble (the “rouble”). The functional currency of the subsidiaries located in other
countries is the respective other local currency. The translation of the financial statements from
the functional currency to the presentation currency is done in accordance with the requirements
of IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. The assets and liabilities of the
subsidiaries which use the rouble or other local currencies as the functional currency are translated
into the presentation currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date, and their
transactions are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. Equity items, other
than the net profit or loss for the year that is included in the balance of accumulated profit or
loss, are translated at the historical exchange rate effective at the date of transition to IFRS. Equity
transactions measured in terms of historical cost in a functional currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date of the transaction. The exchange differences arising on the translation
are recognised in other comprehensive income or loss.
Transactions in foreign currencies in the Company and each subsidiary are initially recorded in
the functional currency at the rate effective at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to the functional currency using
the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All resulting differences are recorded as foreign
currency exchange gains or losses in the period in which they arise. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
as at the dates of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Financial Assets
Initial Recognition and Measurement
Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held
to maturity investments, or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs. All regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Investments classified as held for trading are included in the category “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss”. Investments are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling in the near term. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognised
in profit and loss.
Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis; or (ii) the assets are part of a group of financial assets which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (iii) the financial asset contains an embedded derivative that would need
to be separately recorded. During the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Group did
not hold any investments in this category.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)
Held-to-maturity Investments
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold them
to maturity. During the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Group did not hold any
investments in this category.

Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance income in the income statement. The losses arising
from impairment are recognised in income statement in finance cost.

Available-for-sale Financial Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. As at December 31,
2009 and 2008, the Group had no available-for-sale financial assets.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when:
• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
• the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, a new asset is recognised to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)
Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
“loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Loans and Receivables
For amounts due from loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that
are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the asset.
Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group, if, in a
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is recognised in the income statement.
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.
Available-for-sale Financial Investments
For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale objective evidence would include
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the income statement – is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the income
statement; increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

ROSINTER RESTAURANTS HOLDING

Annual Report 2009

OJSC Rosinter Restaurants Holding

62

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Financial Assets (continued)
In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed based on
the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the income
statement.
Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income. If, in a
subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at historical cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day
servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. At each
reporting date, management assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of property
and equipment. If any such indication exists, management estimates the recoverable amount,
which is determined as the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount, and the difference is recognised as an
expense (impairment loss) in the income statement. An impairment loss recognised for an asset
in prior years is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount.
Depreciation is calculated on property and equipment principally on a straight-line basis from the
time the assets are available for use, over the following estimated economic useful lives:
Description
Leasehold improvements

Useful life, years
10

Buildings

10–30

Restaurant equipment

4–10

Computer equipment and electronics

4

Office furniture and fixtures

10

Vehicles

5–10

Depreciation attributable to restaurants is presented in cost of sales; other depreciation is
presented within selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement.
Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date the asset is classified as held for sale and
the date the asset is derecognised.
The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate,
at each financial year-end. Repair and maintenance expenditure is expensed as incurred. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalised if it can be clearly demonstrated that they extend
the life of the asset or significantly increase its revenue generating capacity beyond its originally
assessed standard of performance, and the assets replaced are derecognised. Gains and losses
arising from the retirement or disposal of property and equipment are included in the consolidated
income statement as incurred.
Assets under construction are stated at cost which includes cost of construction and equipment and
other direct costs. Assets under construction are not depreciated until the constructed or installed
asset is ready for its intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the useful economic lives from 4 to 15 years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Amortisation periods are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets is recognised in the consolidated income statement in the expense
category consistent with the function of the intangible asset. The following specific amortisation
terms are applied for each type of intangible asset:
The Group capitalises franchise lump sums paid to T.G.I. Friday’s Inc. for each new restaurant
opened by the Group under “T.G.I. Friday’s” brand name. Such franchise lump sums are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the franchise contractual period of 15 years.
The Group has exclusive rights to lease and sublease a number of restaurant premises. These
rights are accounted for at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful life period,
generally from 4 to 10 years.
Software development costs are capitalised in accordance with requirements of IAS 38 Intangible
assets at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally
four years.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the net fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary or
associate at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is not amortised. Instead it is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. As at the acquisition date any
goodwill acquired in acquisitions is allocated to each of the cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units expected to benefit from the combination’s synergies, irrespective of whether
other assets and liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or group of units.
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units), to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods. The carrying amount
of goodwill at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was $4,671 and $4,808, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or restaurant level group of assets’ (cash generating unit) fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or
other available fair value indicators.
Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the income statement in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been
a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. Such reversal is recognised in the income statement.
The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets:

Goodwill
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually (as at December 31) and when circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the
recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than their
carrying amount an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot
be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at December
31 either individually or at the cash generating unit level, as appropriate and when circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Inventories
Inventories, which include food, beverages and other supplies, are stated at the lower of cost or
net realisable value. Cost of inventory is determined on the weighted-average basis and includes
expenditures incurred in acquiring inventories and bringing them to their existing location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Value Added Tax
The Russian tax legislation permits settlement of value added tax (“VAT”) on a net basis.
VAT is payable upon invoicing and delivery of goods, performing work or rendering services, as
well as upon collection of prepayments from customers. VAT on purchases, even if they have not
been settled at the reporting date, is deducted from the amount of VAT payable.
Where provision has been made for impairment of receivables, impairment loss is recorded for
the gross amount of the debt, including VAT.
VAT recoverable arises when VAT related to purchases exceeds VAT related to sales.

Receivables
Receivables, which generally have a short term, are recognised and carried at the original invoice
amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts. Allowance is made when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the debts. Impaired debts are derecognised
when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and in
hand, cash in transit and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

Equity
Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
are shown as a deduction in equity from the proceeds. Any excess of the fair value of consideration
received over the par value of shares issued is recognised as additional paid-in capital.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive the payment is established.
Dividends in respect of the period covered by the financial statements that are proposed or declared
after the reporting date but before approval of the financial statements are not recognised as a
liability at the reporting date in accordance with IAS 10 Events After the Reporting Period.

Treasury Shares
Own equity instruments which are reacquired by the Group (“treasury shares”) are recognised at
cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments. Treasury shares are not recognised as
a financial asset regardless of the reason for which they are reacquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Financial Liabilities
Initial Recognition and Measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities
at initial recognition.
Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings,
less directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent Measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
in the near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that do not meet the hedge accounting criteria as defined by IAS 39. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the income statement.
The Group has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Loans and Borrowings
Loans and credit facilities are initially recognised at fair value of the consideration received
less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, loans and credit facilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method; any difference between the
initial fair value of the consideration received (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised as an adjustment to interest expense over the period of the loan.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.

Leases
Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalised from the commencement of the lease term at the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged to interest expense.
The depreciation policy for depreciable leased assets is consistent with that for depreciable assets,
which are owned. If there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end
of the lease term, the asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or its useful life.

ROSINTER RESTAURANTS HOLDING

Annual Report 2009

OJSC Rosinter Restaurants Holding

67

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Financial Liabilities (continued)
Leases, where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset,
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Depending on
contractual terms, the operating lease payment amounts are calculated for each restaurant as either
a percentage of revenue with a minimum fixed monthly payment or as a fixed monthly payment.
Some lease agreements contain escalation clauses.

Liabilities to Partners
Before 2007, the Group entered into partnership agreements with third parties (the “partners”)
in respect of opening and operating the new restaurants. In accordance with the partnership
agreements, the partners have the right to obtain a share in profits of a particular restaurant or group
of restaurants in return for their initial cash investments into the restaurants. The Group manages the
operations of the restaurants. The Group recognises all assets and liabilities of the restaurant in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as well as all income and expenses from their operations.
In addition, the Group recognises a liability to partners under the partnership agreements.
Some of the Group’s subsidiaries in Russia and CIS are incorporated in the legal form of limited
liability companies (LLC) and have several participants (or partners). Each participant has a right
to a dividend distribution proportional to its ownership interest. In addition to the contribution to
the charter capital the partners provide LLCs with interest-bearing or interest-free loans which are
linked to their ownership interest in a LLC. If a participant decides to exit the LLC, the company is
obliged to repay the actual value of the participant’s interest which is determined as its proportional
share of net assets reported in the local statutory accounts. Therefore, the partners’ interest in
these LLCs and loans provided are classified as a liability to partners in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.
At initial recognition, the liability to partners is recognised at its fair value which is equal to the
initial cash investment of the partner. Subsequently, the liability to partners is measured at amortised
cost which is calculated as the net present value of the estimated future payments to the partner
using an effective interest method and any unwinding of the discount is reflected in the income
statement as a finance charge. If the estimates of the future cash payments to the partner change,
the carrying amount of the liability is recalculated by computing the present value of estimated
future cash flows at the original effective interest rate. The adjustment is recognised as finance
income or expense in the consolidated income statement. The income attributed to the partners is
presented as a finance expense in the consolidated income statement.
The differences between the carrying values of partners liabilities relating to acquired ownership
interest and the consideration paid to acquire ownership interest are recognised as financial expense.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The fair value of financial instruments that are traded on active markets at each reporting date
is determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long
positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial
instruments not traded in an active market, fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference
to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; discounted cash flow
analysis or other valuation models.

Amortised Cost of Financial Instruments
Amortised cost is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment
and principal repayment or reduction. The calculation takes into account any premium or discount
on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects a provision to
be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a borrowing cost.

Revenue Recognition
Revenues are recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenues are measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and comprise amounts received following direct sales in
restaurant and amounts received or receivable from franchise holders, net of any rebates, VAT
and other sales taxes.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Revenues from Restaurants and Canteens
Restaurant and canteens revenues are recognised when food and beverages are served. Revenues
from food distribution are recognised upon delivery to the customers. Revenues are recognised at
fair value of meals and services delivered, net of value added tax charged to customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Revenue Recognition (continued)
Franchise Revenues
Franchise revenues comprise fixed franchise fees and continuing royalty fees, which are charged
for the right to use certain of the Group’s intellectual property granted by the franchise agreements
and for other services provided during the period of the agreement. Franchise fees are recognised
as revenues as the rights are granted. Royalty fee from an individual licensee is recognised as a
percentage of its revenue over the period of the agreement. Royalty fees are reported as franchise
revenue when the fees are earned and become receivable.
Sublease Revenues
The Group leases certain premises. Parts of these premises are subleased to third parties. Sublease
revenues are recognised over the lease terms.
Sales of Semi-finished Products to Franchisees
The Group gains revenues from sales of semi-finished products produced at the Group’s main
kitchen production line. Revenues are recognised at fair value of the consideration receivable, net
of value added tax.

Interest Income
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost interest income or expense is recorded
using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is
included in finance income in the income statement.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs of the Group include interest on bank overdrafts, short-term, long-term credit
facilities and bonds. To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose
of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are
determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation
rate is calculated as the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of
the entity that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred. For the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Group
capitalised borrowing costs for leasehold improvements in the amount of $166 and $757, using the
capitalization rate from 8.80% to 15.00% and 13.71%, respectively.

Start-up Expenses for New Restaurants
Start-up expenses for new restaurants represent costs related to the construction and the opening of
new restaurant premises. Such expenses include rent and payroll expenses, new personnel training
and other overhead expenses that arise before the opening of new restaurants. Start-up expenses
for new restaurants are recognised as operating expense in the accounting period the related work
was performed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Employee Benefits
The Company accrues for the employees’ compensated absences (vacations) as the additional
amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused vacation that has accumulated
at the reporting date.
Under provision of the Russian legislation, social contributions are made through a unified social
tax (“UST”) calculated by the Group by the application of a regressive rate (from 26% to 2%) to the
annual gross remuneration of each employee. The Group allocates the UST to three social funds (state
pension fund, social and medical insurance funds), where the rate of contributions to the pension
fund varies from 20% to 2% depending on the annual gross salary of each employee. The Group’s
contributions relating to UST are expensed in the year to which they relate. Total contributions for
UST amounted to $11,999 and $16,434 during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, and they were classified as payroll expenses in these consolidated financial statements.

Loyalty Programmes
Customer loyalty programmes are used by the Group to provide customers with award credits
as part of a sales transaction, including awards that can be redeemed for goods and services not
supplied by the entity. The Group company collecting the consideration on behalf of the third party
measures its revenue as the net amount retained on its own account. The Group company acting
as an agent for a third party recognises revenue arising from rendering agency services to that third
party as revenue from rendering services.
The Group uses the “Honoured Guest” and “Malina” loyalty programmes to build brand loyalty,
retain its valuable customers and increase sales volume. The programmes are designed to reward
customers for past purchases and to provide them with incentives to make future purchases. Each
time a customer buys meals in one of the Group’s restaurants, the Group grants the customer
loyalty award credits.
The “Honoured Guest” programme operates in Russian regions and a customer can redeem the
award credits as they are granted for free meals. The “Malina” programme operates in Moscow
region and a customer using this programme can redeem the award credits as they are granted only
for getting goods and services listed in a special catalogue and provided by a programme operator.

Taxes
Current Income Tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, by the reporting
date, in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.
Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not
in the income statement. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.
Deferred Income Tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporary differences at the reporting
date using the liability method. Deferred income taxes are provided for all temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting
purposes, except where the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Taxes (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except to
the extent that the parent, investor or venturer is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recorded only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates, and interests in joint ventures, to
the extent that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred income tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to
items recognised outside profit or loss, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxable authority.
Unified Tax on Imputed Income
Certain restaurants of the Group’s subsidiaries located outside the Moscow region with restaurants
meeting specified criteria are subject to unified tax on imputed income paid instead of corporate
income tax, value added tax, property tax and unified social tax. According to the Russian Tax Code
companies engaged in restaurant and catering services are subject to unified tax if a trading area
of a restaurant does not exceed 150 square metres. For the years ended December 31, 2009 and
2008, the share of revenues subject to unified tax on imputed income amounted to approximately
15%. Imputed income is calculated as a fixed amount of imputed income per square meter of a
trading area specified by the Russian Tax Code and respective regional/local authorities. Unified tax
on imputed income is fixed at 15% of imputed income.
The Group recognises the unified tax on imputed income as other general and administrative
expenses in its consolidated income statement. For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008,
the unified tax on imputed income amounted to $447 and $218, respectively.

ROSINTER RESTAURANTS HOLDING

Annual Report 2009

OJSC Rosinter Restaurants Holding

72

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions
On an on-going basis, management of the Group evaluates its estimates and assumptions.
Management of the Group bases its estimates and assumptions on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Because of the uncertainty of factors surrounding the estimates or
judgments used in the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements actual results
may vary from these estimates.
Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimates, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Classification of Lease Agreements
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership, otherwise it is classified as an operating lease. Whether a lease is
a finance lease or an operating lease depends on the substance of the transaction rather than the
form of the contract. If the lease term is longer than 75 percent of the economic life of the asset, or
if at the inception of the lease the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts to at least
90 percent of the fair value of the leased asset, the lease is classified by the Group as finance lease,
unless it is clearly demonstrated otherwise.

Operating Lease Terms
The lease term is the non-cancellable period for which the lessee has contracted to lease the asset
together with any further terms for which the lessee has the option to continue to lease the asset,
with or without further payment, when at the inception of the lease it is reasonably certain that the
lessee will exercise the option. When determining the lease term, the Group includes the option
periods which relate to its preferential right to renew the lease agreement under the Civil Code of
the Russian Federation provided the Group has complied with the lease agreement terms (all other
conditions being equal). Preferential right arises if the lessor refused to enter into a lease agreement
with the lessee for a new term, but within one year from the date of expiration of the lease agreement
with the lessee entered into a lease agreement with a third party. In such case the lessee is entitled to
claim through the court the transfer to him of the rights and responsibilities under such an agreement
and compensation of damages caused by refusal to renew the lease agreement and/or to claim
above damages only. Preferential right does not exist if the lessor decides not to continue leasing the
property.

Partnership Agreements
Before 2007, in order to raise capital for the development of its restaurants in the Moscow region,
the Group entered into a number of partnership agreements. The Group has determined that, under
the terms of the partnership agreements, it maintains full control of the restaurants business while
partners gain a share in the profits of the restaurants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)
Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Useful Lives of Property and Equipment
The Group assesses the remaining useful lives of items of property and equipment at least at each
financial year-end. If expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for
as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors. These estimates may have a material impact on the amount of the
carrying values of property and equipment and on depreciation recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets
Generally, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount, which is determined as
the higher of an assets fair value less cost to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets.
In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. The Group
recognised impairment losses for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 in the amount of
$1,386 and $5,683, respectively.

Impairment of Goodwill
The Group’s impairment test for goodwill is based on value in use calculations for cash-generating
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The Group
recognised impairment losses for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 in the amount of
nil and $452, respectively.

Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities Acquired in Business Combinations
The Group is required to recognise separately, at the acquisition date, the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired or assumed in a business combination at their fair
values, which involves estimates. Such estimates are based on valuation techniques, which require
considerable judgment in forecasting future cash flows and developing other assumptions.

Allowance for Impairment of Advances Paid, Taxes Recoverable and Receivables
Management maintains an allowance for impairment for doubtful advances paid and receivables to
provide for losses from the inability of suppliers to deliver goods or services for which they received
prepayments from the Group, inability of franchisees to settle their debts and unrecoverable taxes.
When evaluating the adequacy of an allowance for impairment of advances paid, taxes recoverable
and receivables, management bases its estimates on specific analysis of the major outstanding
prepayments, taxes recoverable and accounts receivable balances and historical write-off experience.
If the financial condition of those suppliers or franchisees were to deteriorate, actual write-offs might
be higher than expected. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the allowance for impairment of
advances paid, taxes recoverable and receivables amounted to $1,596 and $1,242, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)
Allowance for Impairment of Inventory
Management of the Group regularly reviews the need to provide for slow moving or damaged
inventory based on monthly aging and inventory turnover report as well as based on physical
inventory observation. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the allowances for impairment of
inventory amounted to $1,323 and $1,190, respectively.

Current Taxes
Russian tax legislation is subject to varying interpretation and changes occurring frequently. Further,
the interpretation of tax legislation by tax authorities as applied to the transactions and activity of
the Group’s entities may not coincide with that of management. As a result, tax authorities may
challenge transactions and the Group’s entities may be assessed additional taxes, penalties and
interest. The periods remain open to review by the tax authorities with respect to tax liabilities
for three calendar years preceding the year of review. Under certain circumstances reviews may
cover longer periods. During the year ended December 31, 2007 the Group reduced its costs of
operations by approximately $800 through the utilisation of certain tax planning strategies. Other
possible uncertain tax positions amounted to $3,016 at December 31, 2009. See also Note 29 –
Commitments and Contingencies.

Deferred Tax Assets
Management judgment is required for the calculation of current and deferred income taxes.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that their utilisation is probable. The utilisation of
deferred tax assets will depend on whether it is possible to generate sufficient taxable income in
respective tax type and jurisdiction. Various factors are used to assess the probability of the future
utilisation of deferred tax assets, including past operating results, operational plan, expiration of
tax losses carried forward, and tax planning strategies. If actual results differ from such estimates
or if these estimates must be adjusted in future periods, the financial position, results of operations
and cash flows may be negatively affected. In such an event, the assessment of future utilisation of
deferred tax assets must be reduced and this reduction be recognised in profit or loss.
5. Business combinations

Acquisition of Den’ LLC
On June 30, 2008, the Group acquired a 100% ownership interest in Den’ LLC (“Den’”), a Russian
limited liability company, for cash consideration of $1,479. The main asset of “Den’” was a rent
right with a fair value of $945. The acquisition resulted in excess of the purchase price over the
fair value of the net assets assumed of $479 (at the exchange rate as of June 30, 2008), which was
recorded as goodwill as the Group expected to generate profits using this location to operate a
restaurant business. An impairment loss was recognised in the amount of $452 at December 31,
2008 and was allocated fully to goodwill. An impairment loss was a consequence of rent cost
reduction and negative future cash flow.

Acquisition of Valderama Investments Limited
On July 5, 2008, the Group acquired a 100% ownership interest in Valderama Investments Limited
(“Valderama”) from Rostik Investment Group Inc., a related party, for total consideration of $12,220,
including valuation cost of $30. Valderama owned 100% participatory interest in AirTrade LLC
(“AirTrade”) and 75.06% of the share capital of KOP Pulkovo OJSC (“Pulkovo”), the Group’s joint
ventures. Until the acquisition the Group participated in joint venture agreements with AirTrade
and Pulkovo and had 20% interest in jointly controlled entities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
5. Business combinations (continued)

Acquisition of Valderama Investments Limited (continued)
The financial position and the results of operations of Valderama, AirTrade and Pulkovo were
included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements beginning July 5, 2008 as the Group
effectively exercised control over their operations since that date. In the period from January 1,
2008 to July 5, 2008, the Group accounted for its investment in these joint ventures under the
equity method (refer to Note 8).
Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of Valderama, AirTrade and Pulkovo and the
resulting goodwill were as follows:
July 5, 2008
Property and equipment

1,312

Intangible assets

10,284

Inventories

84

Accounts receivable

613

Cash

1,318

Total assets

13,611

Non-current liabilities

(1,613)

Deferred income tax liabilities

(2,513)

Current liabilities

(803)

Total liabilities

(4,929)

Minority interest related to KOP Pulkovo

(1,682)

Net assets

7,000

Fair value of net assets attributable to 100% ownership interest

7,000

Purchase consideration

12,250

Goodwill as of July 5, 2008

5,250

In 2008, cash flow on acquisition was as follows:
2008
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary

1,318

Cash paid

(12,220)

Net cash outflow

(10,902)

Valderama’s consolidated net profit for the period from July 5, 2008 to December 31, 2008 amounted
to $974. If the acquisition of Valderama group had occurred on January 1, 2008, the Group’s revenue
for the year ended December 31, 2008, would have increased by the amount of $4,177 and the
Group’s loss for the year ended December 31, 2008, would have decreased by the amount of $714.
Estimates of contribution of revenue and profit to the Group are based on unaudited information
derived from previous management accounts of Valderama, AirTrade and Pulkovo.

Goodwill
Movements in goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries were as follows at December 31:
Gross amount
At December 31, 2007
Goodwill recognised on acquisition of subsidiaries
Impairment

Impairment losses

Carrying amount

739

–

739

5,702

–

5,702

–

(452)

(452)

Translation difference

(1,181)

–

(1,181)

At December 31,2008

5,260

(452)

4,808

Translation difference

(150)

13

(137)

At December 31,2009

5,110

(439)

4,671
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
5. Business Combinations (continued)

Goodwill (continued)
The Group’s goodwill was tested for impairment at the restaurants (cash generating unit) level by
comparing values of cash generating units’ assets including goodwill to their recoverable amounts.
The recoverable amount of cash generating units has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flows from financial budgets approved by key management covering the
period of useful life of the main asset of each cash generating unit. The cash flow projections were
discounted at the Group’s cost of financing, 16% and 18% in Russian Rouble nominal terms for 2009
and 2008, respectively. The Group’s management believes that all of its estimates are reasonable as
they are consistent with the internal reporting and reflect management’s best estimates.
The result of applying discounted cash flow models reflects expectations about possible variations in
the amount and timing of future cash flows and is based on reasonable and supportable assumptions
that represent management’s best estimate of the range of uncertain economic conditions.
As a result of the assessment, the carrying amount of Den’ cash generating unit exceeded its
recoverable amount therefore an impairment loss was recognised in the 2008 income statement
in the amount of $452. In 2009 there was no additional impairment of goodwill. In regard to the
assessment of value-in-use of other cash generating units, management believes that no reasonable
change in any of the above assumptions would cause the carrying value of the unit to materially
exceed its recoverable amount.
6. Intangible Assets
The movement in intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows:
Franchise
rights

Exclusive rent
rights

Trademarks

Software

Total

Cost
At December 31, 2007

567

Additions

3,539

882

3,801

8,789

319

2,753

27

484

3,583

Assets acquired in business combination

–

10,485

–

–

10,485

Disposals

–

–

(5)

(5)

(10)

(114)

(2,054)

(141)

(675)

(2,984)

772

14,723

763

3,605

19,863

(184)

(1,129)

(69)

(302)

(1,684)

(56)

(1,409)

(61)

(808)

(2,334)

Translation difference
At December 31, 2008
Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment
At December 31, 2007
Charge for the year
Disposals

–

–

1

2

3

Impairment of intangible assets

–

(1,304)

(731)

–

(2,035)

39

531

132

168

870

(201)

(3,311)

(728)

(940)

(5,180)

At December 31, 2007

383

2,410

813

3,499

7,105

At December 31, 2008

571

11,412

35

2,665

14,683

Translation difference
At December 31, 2008
Net Book Value
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
6. Intangible Assets (continued)
The Group recognised impairment losses from Trademark “El Rincon Espanol” in the amount of
$731 and from rent options in Samara LLC and Rosinter Czech Republic s.r.o. in the amount of
$872 and $432, respectively, as future benefit from these assets is unlikely to flow to the Group.
Impairment losses were identified as a result of the testing at the level of cash generating units.
Recognised impairment losses relate to cash generating units with negative projected cash flows.
Carrying amount of the assets was written off to the recoverable amount equal to nil.
The movement in intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2009 was as follows:
Franchise
rights

Exclusive
rent rights

Trademarks

Software

Total

Cost
At December 31, 2008

772

14,723

763

3,605

19,863

Additions

291

364

3

95

753

Disposals

–

(836)

–

(10)

(846)

(4)

(332)

(1)

(121)

(458)

1,059

13,919

765

3,569

19,312

(201)

(3,311)

(728)

(940)

(5,180)

(87)

(2,088)

(4)

(775)

(2,954)

Translation difference
At December 31, 2009
Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment
At December 31, 2008
Charge for the year
Disposals

–

–

–

3

3

Impairment of intangible assets

–

(422)

–

–

(422)

Translation difference

–

22

–

3

25

(288)

(5,799)

(732)

(1,709)

(8,528)

At December 31, 2008

571

11,412

35

2,665

14,683

At December 31, 2009

771

8,120

33

1,860

10,784

At December 31, 2009
Net Book Value

The group recognised impairment loss from an exclusive rent right in rosinter czech republic
s.R.O. In the amount of $422 as future benefit from this asset is unlikely to flow to the group.
Impairment loss was identified as a result of the testing at the level of cash generating units.
The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flows from financial budgets approved by key management covering the
period of useful life of the main asset of each cash generating unit. The cash flow projections
were discounted at the group’s cost of financing, 16% and 18% in russian rouble nominal terms
for 2009 and 2008, respectively. Recognised impairment loss relates to a cash generating unit
with insufficient projected cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset was written off to the
recoverable amount equal to nil.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
7. Property and Equipment
The movement in property and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows:

Buildings and
leasehold
improvements

Restaurant
equipment

Computer
equipment
and
electronics

Office
furniture
and fixtures

Vehicles

Assets under
construction

Total

1,093

11,425

116,303

Cost
At December 31, 2007

68,732

22,962

6,564

5,527

327

4,416

114

558

32,153

37,568

1,091

962

57

63

35

(472)

1,736

Assets put into use

22,024

7,380

2,097

2,668

426

(34,595)

–

Disposals

(1,734)

(1,716)

(432)

(380)

(137)

(1,711)

(6,110)

(14,688)

(4,981)

(1,260)

(993)

(228)

(1,036)

(23,186)

75,752

29,023

7,140

7,443

1,189

5,764

126,311

(24,687)

(5,663)

(3,531)

(1,766)

(283)

–

(35,930)

(6,404)

(1,785)

(1,454)

(674)

(129)

–

(10,446)

836

610

369

164

80

–

2,059

(1,753)

(549)

(118)

(300)

–

(928)

(3,648)

Additions
Assets acquired in business combination

Translation difference
At December 31, 2008
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At December 31, 2007
Charge for the year
Disposals
Impairment of property and equipment

5,171

1,176

719

339

49

142

7,596

(26,837)

(6,211)

(4,015)

(2,237)

(283)

(786)

(40,369)

At December 31, 2007

44,045

17,299

3,033

3,761

810

11,425

80,373

At December 31, 2008

48,915

22,812

3,125

5,206

906

4,978

85,942

Translation difference
At December 31, 2008
Net Book Value
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
7. Property and Equipment (continued)
The movement in property and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2009 was as follows:
Buildings and
leasehold
improvements

Restaurant
equipment

Computer
Office
equipment and furniture and
electronics
fixtures

Vehicles

Assets under
construction

Total

Cost
75,752

29,023

7,140

7,443

1,189

5,764

126,311

570

1,330

29

65

–

8,720

10,714

4,353

1,466

410

592

19

(6,840)

–

Disposals

(2,715)

(1,201)

(434)

(272)

(50)

(1,042)

(5,714)

Translation difference

(2,628)

(1,373)

(312)

(461)

(52)

(69)

(4,895)

At December 31, 2009

75,332

29,245

6,833

7,367

1,106

6,533

126,416

(26,837)

(6,211)

(4,015)

(2,237)

(283)

(786)

(40,369)

(6,110)

(1,763)

(1,196)

(642)

(101)

–

(9,812)

Disposals

1,480

341

357

109

15

–

2,302

Impairment of property and equipment

(345)

(185)

(9)

(107)

–

(318)

(964)

846

241

119

76

11

7

1,300

(30,966)

(7,577)

(4,744)

(2,801)

(358)

(1,097)

(47,543)

At December 31, 2008

48,915

22,812

3,125

5,206

906

4,978

85,942

At December 31, 2009

44,366

21,668

2,089

4,566

748

5,436

78,873

At December 31, 2008
Additions
Assets put into use

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At December 31, 2008
Charge for the year

Translation difference
At December 31, 2009

Net Book Value
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
7. Property and Equipment (continued)
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, certain items of property and equipment with a carrying
value of $15,171 and $7,718, respectively, were pledged to banks as collateral against loans to the
Group.
The Group has several finance lease contracts for motor vehicles and computer equipment. The
carrying value of the leased assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 amounted to $578 and
$931, respectively.
The Group recognised impairment losses of property and equipment for the years ended December
31, 2009 and 2008 in the amount of $964 and $3,648, respectively, as the recoverable amount of
these assets was nil at the same dates. Impairment losses were identified as a result of the testing
at the level of restaurants (cash generating units). The recoverable amount of a cash generating
unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flows from financial
budgets approved by key management covering the period of useful life of the main asset of each
cash generating unit. The cash flow projections were discounted at the Group’s cost of financing,
16% and 18% in Russian Rouble nominal terms for 2009 and 2008, respectively. Recognised
impairment losses of property and equipment relate to loss-making restaurants located in Moscow,
Novosibirsk, Rostov-on-Don, Krasnoyarsk, Togliatti and Samara.
8. Investments in Joint Ventures and Associates
The Group accounted for investments in joint ventures and associates under the equity method.
The movement in investments in joint ventures and associates was as follows:
Pulkovo and AirTrade
Joint Venture
At December 31, 2007

Costa
Joint Venture

Associates

Total

327

1

141

469

39

2,999

–

3,038

–

(1,317)

38

(1,279)

(366)

–

–

(366)

Translation difference

–

(343)

(29)

(372)

At December 31, 2008

–

1,340

150

1,490

Share of profit / (loss)

–

(563)

25

(538)

Translation difference

–

(32)

(3)

(35)

At December 31, 2009

–

745

172

917

Investments in joint ventures
Share of profit / (loss)
Elimination of participatory interest in joint
venture due to acquisition

In December 2007, the Group entered into a joint venture agreement with Costa Limited (“Costa”)
which operates coffee houses in the United Kingdom and other countries. The Group and Costa
operate Rosworth Investments Limited and its subsidiary as a joint venture. The Group has 50%
interest in Rosworth Investments Limited which started its operating activity in 2008. During 2008,
the Group contributed $2,999 to the capital of the joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
8. Investments in Joint Ventures and Associates (continued)
The following table illustrates summarised financial information of the Group’s interest in the Costa
joint venture at December 31, 2009 and 2008, and for the years then ended:
Non-current assets
Current assets

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture

2009

2008

1,167

1,166

495

978

1,662

2,144

670

274

247

530

917

804

745

1,340

Revenue

2,497

681

Cost of sales

(750)

(213)

(2,676)

(2,013)

443

307

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Net finance income
Net operating expenses
Loss for the year

(77)

(79)

(563)

(1,317)

In July 2008, the Group acquired a 100% ownership interest in Valderama Investments Limited
(“Valderama”) which holds 100% participatory interest in AirTrade LLC and 75.06% shares in KOP
Pulkovo OJSC. The Group eliminated its participatory interest in joint ventures in Pulkovo airport
due to the business combination.
9. Inventories
Inventories consisted of the following as of December 31:
2009

2008

Foods, beverages, liquors and tobacco, at cost

4,783

4,637

Utensils, paper goods and other items, at cost

3,165

3,012

7,948

7,649

(1,323)

(1,190)

6,625

6,459

2009

2008

5,271

6,221

262

307

5,533

6,528

(1,082)

(1,070)

4,451

5,458

Allowance for slow-moving and damaged items
Total inventories, net

10. Advances Paid
Advances paid consisted of the following as of December 31:
Advances to suppliers
Advances to employees
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total advances paid, net
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
10. Advances Paid (continued)
As at December 31, 2009 and 2008, advances to suppliers at nominal value of $1,082 and $1,070,
respectively, were impaired and fully provided for. Movements in the allowance for impairment of
advances paid were as follows:
2009

2008

1,070

1,314

Charge for the year

210

718

Amounts written off

(69)

(452)

At January 1

Unused amounts reversed

(98)

(304)

Translation difference

(31)

(206)

1,082

1,070

2009

2008

Trade receivables

2,498

2,906

Other receivables

1,210

761

3,708

3,667

Allowance for doubtful accounts

(514)

(172)

Total receivables, net

3,194

3,495

At December 31

11. Trade and Other Receivables
Receivables consisted of the following as of December 31:

Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30–90 days terms.
As at December 31, 2009 and 2008, trade and other receivables at nominal value of $514 and $172,
respectively, were impaired and fully provided for. Movements in the provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables were as follows:
2009

2008

At January 1

172

226

Charge for the year

403

66

Amounts written off

(19)

(92)

Unused amounts reversed

(27)

(1)

Translation difference

(15)

(27)

At December 31

514

172

As at December 31, the aging analysis of trade and other receivables is presented below:

Trade receivables
Other receivables

Past due but not impaired

Total

Neither past due
nor impaired

2,201

1,011

505

216

469

<3 months

3–6 months

>6 months

993

285

187

145

376

2009

3,194

1,296

692

361

845

Trade receivables

2,858

1,494

1,115

174

75

Other receivables

637

228

295

44

70

3,495

1,722

1,410

218

145

2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
12. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following as of December 31:
2009

2008

Cash at bank

2,172

4,205

Cash in hand

663

533

Cash in transit

620

909

Short-term deposits

290

287

3,745

5,934

Total cash and cash equivalents

13. Share Capital

Share Capital and Share Premium
The Company was established as the result of a reorganization of entities under control of the
Parent company, RIG Restaurants Limited. The Company was established as an open joint stock
company in accordance with the legislation of the Russian Federation on May 24, 2004. At that
time, the Company issued 10,000,000 common shares with a par value of 247 Russian roubles per
share (8.52 US dollars per share at the exchange rate as of May 24, 2004).
On June 1, 2007, the Company issued and sold 2,030,457 new shares with a nominal value of
169.7 Russian roubles per share ($6.55 at the transaction date exchange rate) to the Parent at the
price of $29.55 for the total amount of $60,000 (refer to Note 1). The excess of cash consideration
over nominal value of shares issued was recognised as share premium. On December 27, 2007, the
Group bought back 146,970 shares from the Parent at a price of $58.57 for the amount of $8,608.
These shares were accounted for as treasury shares. The authorized and issued share capital of the
Company as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 comprised 12,030,457 shares. All issued shares
were fully paid.
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the outstanding share capital comprised of 11,883,487 shares.

Earnings per Share
Earnings per share were calculated by dividing the net loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
2009

2008

(8,254)

(15,190)

11,883,487

11,883,487

(0.69)

(1.28)

Net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
Losses per share attributable to equity holders of the Company,
basic and diluted (US dollars)

The Company has no potentially dilutive ordinary shares; therefore, the diluted losses per share
equal basic losses per share.
14. Purchase of Non-controlling Interest in a Subsidiary
On May 12, 2009, the Group acquired 49% of the share capital and settled certain accounts
payables of Rosinter Restaurants Samara CJSC, the Group’s subsidiary, for cash consideration of
156,200,000 Russian roubles ($4,780 at the exchange rate at the date of transaction). The net assets
of Rosinter Restaurants Samara were negative at the date of acquisition. The acquisition resulted in
excess of the purchase price over the book value of non-controlling interest of $4,176, which was
recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
15. Liabilities to Partners
The movements in liabilities to partners were as follows during the years ended December 31:
At January 1
Increase in amounts due to partners (Note 27)
Payments to partners
Capital contributed by partners in cash
Payments to acquire interest in subsidiaries

2009

2008

9,525

14,078

356

2,321

(2,090)

(6,685)

114

1,706

–

(199)

(82)

(839)

Translation difference

(277)

(857)

At December 31

7,546

9,525

2009

2008

Current portion

3,397

4,338

Long-term portion

4,149

5,187

Total liabilities to partners

7,546

9,525

Other non-cash settlements

Analysed as to:

16. Related Parties Disclosures
In accordance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures parties are considered to be related if one
party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial or operational decisions. In considering each possible related party relationship,
attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form.
Related parties may enter into transactions which unrelated parties might not, and transactions
between related parties may not be effected on the same terms, conditions and amounts as
transactions between unrelated parties.
Short-term loans receivable from related parties consisted of the following as of December 31:
Short-term loans receivable from
related parties
Related Parties
Rostik Investment Group Inc. (1)
Other EUCC (2)
Total short-term loans receivable from /payable
to related parties

Nature of relationship
Entity under common
control (EUCC)

2009

2008

2,273

2,340

86

362

2,359

2,702

(1) On December 24, 2007, the Group provided Rostik Investment Group Inc. with an unsecured
rouble denominated loan in the total amount of $2,340 (at the exchange rate as of December
31, 2008), bearing interest of 14% per annum and maturing on December 25, 2009. In
December 2009, the loan agreement was renewed with the same interest rate and due date
of August 31, 2010.
(2) During 2009, the Group wrote off a short-term loan and interest receivable from Rosinter
Restaurants OU (Estonia) in the total amount of $323.
The interest rate for the loans given to the other EUCC varies from nil to 14% per annum.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
16. Related Parties Disclosures (continued)
Long-term loans receivable from/payable to related parties consisted of the following as of December 31:
Nature of
relationship

Related Parties
Hodler Finance S.A. (3)

EUCC

Rosworth Investments Limited (4)

Joint venture

Long-term loans receivable
from related parties
2009

2009

2008

4,000

–

–

–

753

285

–

–

–

590

814

814

4,753

875

814

814

Other EUCC (5)
Total long-term loans receivable from/
payable to related parties

2008

Long-term loans payable
to related parties

(3) On December 10, 2007, the Group issued a rouble-denominated unsecured loan to Hodler
Finance S.A. for $9,166 (at the exchange rate as of December 31, 2007), bearing interest of 12%
per annum and maturing on June 10, 2008. During the year ended December 31, 2008, the loan
was fully repaid.
In November 2009, the Group issued two unsecured loans to Hodler Finance S.A. in the
amounts of $3,000 and $1,000 bearing interest of 12.05% and 8.78% per annum, respectively,
and maturing in 2012. Such loans correspond to 36.4% portion of the credit lines obtained
by the Group from Raiffeisenbank and Credit Europe Bank where related parties provided
real estate as supplementary collateral.
(4) In 2009, Group issued additional tranches of an interest free loan to Rosworth Investments
Limited maturing in 2017. The nominal amount of the loan of $1,474 and $600 as at December
31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, was discounted using a market rate of 12% per annum.
(5) During 2009, the Group impaired a long-term loan and interest receivable from Rosinter
Restaurants GmbH (Austria) in the amount of $799.
The interest rate for the loans received from the other EUCC varies from 1% to 13% per annum
Long-term receivables from related party consisted of receivables from Rostik Investment Group
Inc. for management and financial advisory services provided by the Group in accordance with a
consultancy agreement signed in 2007. In January 2008, the Group entered into an addendum in
which the parties agreed that the arrangement must be settled not later than December 31, 2011. The
Group discounted the nominal amount of $1,574 at a market rate of 12% per annum. The outstanding
balance at amortised cost was $1,255 and $1,120 as at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Long-term advances to related party consisted of payments to CJSC Preobrazhenie for noncontrolling shares in the Group’s subsidiaries in Omsk in the amount of $5,470 at the exchange
rate as of December 31, 2009 and for non-controlling shares in the Group’s subsidiaries in Samara
and Omsk in the amount of $4,627 and $3,506 at the exchange rate as of December 31, 2008.
Short-term receivable from / payable to related parties consisted of the following as of December 31:

Related Parties

Nature of
relationship

Receivables from related
parties
2009

2008

Payables to related
parties
2009

2008

Rostik Investment Group Inc. (6)

EUCC

641

332

125

83

Perm Caramel Restaurants LLC (7)

EUCC

306

314

–

–

RIG Restaurants Limited (8)

Parent company

259

263

–

–

Tumen Caramel Restaurants LLC (7)

EUCC

208

214

–

–

National QSR Network LLC (9)

EUCC

292

1

–

122

Joint venture

114

294

32

–

–

–

713

1,257

637

687

607

483

2,457

2,105

1,477

1,945

Brava LLC (10)
Loyalty Partners Vostok LLC (11)
Other EUCC
Total receivable from / payable to
related parties
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
16. Related Parties Disclosures (continued)
(6) The outstanding receivable balance as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, represents management
and financial advisory services provided by the Group to Rostik Investment Group Inc.
The outstanding payable balance as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, comprises rent payable
and interest payable.
(7) The outstanding receivable balances as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, relate to non-current
assets of Rostik’s-KFC outlets sold by the Group to regional Rostik’s companies Perm Caramel
Restaurants LLC and Tumen Caramel Restaurants LLC.
(8) The outstanding receivable balance at December 31, 2009 and 2008, results from operating
expenses and IPO expenses paid by the Group on behalf of RIG Restaurants Limited.
(9) The outstanding balances at December 31, 2009 and 2008, represent management, consulting
and accounting services provided by the Group to National QSR Network LLC.
(10) The outstanding receivable balance as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, represents catering,
management and other services provided in accordance with agreements between the Group
and Brava LLC, the Russian subsidiary of the Group’s joint venture with Costa Limited.
(11) The outstanding payable balance to Loyalty Partners Vostok LLC represents services related
to the “Malina” customer loyalty program provided to the Group. The ultimate controlling
shareholder holds director position in Loyalty Partners Vostok LLC.
As at December 31, the aging analysis of receivables from related parties is presented below:
Past due but not impaired

Total

Neither past due
nor impaired

<3 months

3–6 months

>6 months

2009

2,457

1,876

291

20

270

2008

2,105

1,540

55

19

491

Transactions with related parties were as follows for the year ended December 31, 2008:

Related Parties

Nature of
relationship

Revenue and
other gains

Purchases

Interest
income

Interest
expense

2008

2008

2008

2008

National QSR Network LLC (12)

EUCC

1,806

50

361

–

Omsk QSR Network LLC (13)

EUCC

1,360

–

–

–

Russian Caramel Restaurants LLC (14)

EUCC

716

–

–

–

Joint venture

399

3

–

–

RosCorp LLC (16)

EUCC

172

3,422

1

–

Rostik Aero LLC (17)

EUCC

10

305

–

–

Rostik Investment Group Inc. (1, 6)

EUCC

3

511

404

454

Hodler Finance S.A. (3)

EUCC

14

–

482

–

Other EUCC

1,643

1,387

90

315

Total

6,123

5,678

1,338

769

Brava LLC (15)
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16. Related Parties Disclosures (continued)
Transactions with related parties were as follows for the year ended December 31, 2009:

Related Parties

Nature of
relationship

Revenue and
other gains

Purchases

Interest
income

Interest
expense

2009

2009

2009

2009

National QSR Network LLC (11)

EUCC

801

–

–

–

Omsk QSR Network LLC (12)

EUCC

749

–

–

–

Russian Caramel Restaurants LLC (13)

EUCC

583

–

–

–

Joint venture

383

49

–

–

RosCorp LLC (15)

EUCC

83

4,311

–

–

Rostik Aero LLC (16)

EUCC

10

539

–

–

Rostik Investment Group Inc. (1, 5)

EUCC

–

703

438

–

Hodler Finance S.A. (3)

–

–

71

–

Rosworth Investments Limited (4)

–

–

–

415

821

1,014

26

98

3,430

6,616

535

513

Brava LLC (14)

Other EUCC
Total

(12) During 2009 and 2008, the Group rendered management, consulting and accounting services
to National QSR Network LLC.
(13) During 2009 and 2008, the Group rendered management, consulting and accounting services
and sold semi-finished product to Omsk QSR Network LLC.
(14) During 2009 and 2008, the Group rendered rent, management and accounting services to
Russian Caramel Restaurants LLC.
(15) During 2009 and 2008, the Group rendered catering, management and other services to
Brava LLC.
(16) During 2009 and 2008, the Group purchased rent, transport and utility services from RosCorp
LLC.
(17) During 2009 and 2008, Rostik Aero LLC provided the Group with premises for fees.

Compensation to Key Management Personnel
Key management personnel totalled 12 and 16 persons as at December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. Total compensation to key management personnel, including social taxes, was
recorded in general and administrative expenses and consisted of the following:
Salary
Performance bonuses

2009

2008

2,335

3,288

–

144

2,335

3,432

The Group’s contributions relating to social taxes for key management personnel amounted to
$96 and $144 during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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17. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt, at amortised cost, consisted of the following as of December 31:
2009
Savings Bank of the Russian Federation (Sberbank)

2008

27,489

–

Credit Europe Bank

6,000

–

Bonds issued, net of issuance cost

3,931

33,974

Raiffeisenbank

1,711

–

Titul LLC

1,157

–

700

–

–

3,676

213

331

Garant Invest
Barclays (Expobank)
Other long-term debts

41,201

37,981

Less: current portion

(7,103)

(34,293)

Total long-term debt

34,098

3,688

Sberbank
On June 3, 2009, the Group entered into a new loan agreement with Sberbank in the amount of
950 million Russian roubles ($31,411 at the exchange rate at December 31, 2009) bearing interest
of 18.50% per annum and maturing in June 2012, to cover repayments of bonds in accordance
with the early redemption options. The Group has provided Sberbank with a security against this
loan which consists of trade marks with a net book value of $16 and pledged value of $19,456 (at
the exchange rate at December 31, 2009), fixed assets of the regional companies with a net book
value of $6,446 and pledged value of $18,387 (at the exchange rate at June 3, 2009), more than
50% of the shares of the companies whose fixed assets have been used as collateral against this
loan, 99% of the shares of Moscow company Rosinter Restaurants LLC and 25% plus 1 share of
the public company Rosinter Restaurants Holding. The unutilised balance of the loan amounted to
$3,922 as of December 31, 2009.

Credit Europe Bank
In November 2009, the Group entered into a credit facility agreement in the amount of $6,000
bearing interest of 12.00% per annum and maturing in November 2012. The credit facility is secured
by a guarantee of VAKO LLC, a related party. The debt was fully repaid in March 2010.
Bonds
In December 2005, Rosinter Restaurants LLC, a Group company, issued 1,000,000 non-convertible
bonds with a face value of 1,000 Russian roubles each in an aggregated principal amount of
1,000 million Russian roubles. The bonds have 10 coupons payable semi-annually with variable
interest rates declared by the Group. The interest rate for the three coupon periods ended May
2008 was 10.75%. The interest rate for two coupon periods ending May 2009 was 12.00%. The
interest rate for two coupon periods ending May 2010 is 18.00%. During 2009, most bondholders
exercised their early redemption option. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2009 and 2008
represented 118,923 bonds in the amount of $3,931 (at the exchange rate at December 31, 2009)
and 1,000,000 bonds in the amount of $34,036 (at the exchange rate at December 31, 2008).
The bonds will mature on November 26, 2010. The bondholders have an early redemption option
exercisable in May 2010. At December 31, 2009, the bonds were reclassified to short-term debt.
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17. Long-Term Debt (continued)

Raiffeisenbank
In November 2009, the Group entered into a credit facility agreement in the amount of $5,000
bearing interest of LIBOR plus 8.50% per annum and maturing in May 2012. The credit facility
is secured by a guarantee of “Institut Stekla” OJSC, a related party. The unutilized balance of the
credit facility amounted to $3,289 as of December 31, 2009.

Titul LLC
In July 2009, the Group entered into a loan agreement in the amount of 35 million Russian roubles
bearing interest of 15.00% per annum and maturing in July 2015. The credit facility is secured by a
guarantee of RIG Restaurants Limited, the Parent. The debt was fully repaid in April 2010.

Garant Invest
In February 2009, the Group entered into a credit facility agreement in the amount of $800
bearing interest of 15.00% per annum and maturing in July 2011. In November 2009, the Group
repaid the amount of $100. The debt was fully repaid in March 2010.

Barclays (Expobank)
In July 2008, the Group assumed a liability under a credit facility through the business combination
in the amount of 108 million Russian roubles ($3,676 at the exchange rate at December 31, 2008)
bearing interest of 12.00% per annum and maturing in January 2010. The credit facility was fully
repaid in 2009.
18. Finance Lease Liabilities
The Group has several finance lease agreements for motor vehicles and computer equipment. The
leased assets under these agreements are included in property and equipment in the consolidated
statements of financial position in the amount of $578 and $931 as of December 31, 2009 and
2008, respectively. Depreciation of property and equipment under the finance lease contracts for
2009 and 2008 amounted to $242 and $308, respectively. Finance charges for the year ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008 amounted to $68 and $160, respectively, and are included in interest
expense in the consolidated statement of income.
Future minimum lease payments together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments
were as follows at December 31:
2009
Minimum
payments
Within one year

2008

Present value
of payments

Minimum
payments

Present value
of payments

167

144

444

369

12

12

168

143

Total minimum lease payment

179

156

612

512

Less amounts representing finance charges

(23)

–

(100)

–

Present value of minimum lease payments

156

156

512

512

After one year but not more than five years

In the year ended December 31, 2009, the interest rate varied from 9.28% to 11.83%. In the year
ended December 31, 2008, the interest rate varied from 9.28% to 24.00%.
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19. Income Tax
The Group’s provision for income tax for the years ended December 31 is as follows:
2009

2008

Current tax

(5,002)

(5,050)

Deferred tax

(1,223)

2,097

Total income tax expense

(6,225)

(2,953)

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes.
The tax effect of the temporary differences that give rise to the deferred tax assets and liabilities
were as follows as of December 31, 2009:
December 31,
2008

Differences
recognition and
reversal

Translation
difference

December 31,
2009

Tax effect of deductible temporary differences
Trade and other payables

1,379

(72)

(45)

1,262

250

26

(30)

246

2,686

(1,461)

(147)

1,078

20

86

9

115

4,335

(1,421)

(213)

2,701

(2,402)

183

39

(2,180)

(28)

(2)

(6)

(36)

Allowance for impairment of receivables and
inventory
Carryforward of unused tax losses
Other
Total deferred tax asset:
Tax effect of taxable temporary differences
Property and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Other
Total deferred tax liability:
Net deferred tax asset / (liability)

(297)

17

(90)

(370)

(2,727)

198

(57)

(2,586)

1,608

(1,223)

(270)

115

The tax effect of the temporary differences that give rise to the deferred tax assets and liabilities
were as follows as of December 31, 2008:
Deferred
tax acquired
in business
combination

Differences
recognition
and reversal

Effect
of tax rate
reduction

2,780

(844)

(276)

–

(281)

1,379

Allowance for impairment
of receivables and inventory

398

(69)

(50)

–

(29)

250

Carryforward of unused
tax losses

511

3,365

(537)

–

(653)

2,686

Other

205

(178)

(4)

–

(3)

20

3,894

2,274

(867)

–

(966)

4,335

(1,266)

223

480

(2,467)

628

(2,402)

(321)

277

6

–

10

(28)

December 31,
2007

Translation December 31,
difference
2008

Tax effect of deductible
temporary differences
Trade and other payables

Total deferred tax asset:
Tax effect of taxable
temporary differences
Property and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Other
Total deferred tax liability:
Net deferred tax asset /
(liability)
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59

(55)

59

(297)

(1,592)

145

545

(2,522)

697

(2,727)
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2,419

(322)

(2,522)

(269)
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19. Income Tax (continued)
The recognition and reversal of temporary differences, as presented in the tables above, primarily
relates to the depreciation of property and equipment in excess of the depreciation for tax purposes,
accrued liabilities, tax losses available for carry forward and provisions to write inventory down to
net realisable value.
The temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries for which a deferred tax
liability has not been recognised aggregate to $568 and $901 as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Group recognised a deferred tax liability for
the temporary differences associated with profit distribution in the amount of $113 and $449,
respectively.
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, several Company’s subsidiaries had accumulated tax losses
in the amount of $5,390 and $13,430, for which a deferred tax asset of $1,078 and $2,686,
respectively, was recognised. Management expects that these tax losses will be used against future
taxable income. This deferred tax asset may be utilised within 8–10 years.
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, several Company’s subsidiaries the Group hads tax losses
in the amount of $7,540 and $6,300, respectively, that are available indefinitely for offset against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. However, these losses relate
to subsidiaries that have a history of losses, do not expire and may not be used to offset taxable
income elsewhere in the Group. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they may not be used to offset taxable profits elsewhere in the Group and they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time. The subsidiary has no taxable temporary
differences or any tax planning opportunities available that could partly support the recognition of
these losses as deferred tax assets. If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax
assets profit would increase by $1,438.
The statutory tax rate effective in the Russian Federation, the location of the majority of the Group’s
entities, was 24% in 2008. The statutory tax rate was reduced to 20% in 2009. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities at December 31, 2008, were calculated using 20% tax rate. The taxation charge for
the year is different from that which would be obtained by applying the statutory income tax rate
to the net profit before income tax.
Below is a reconciliation of theoretical income tax at statutory income tax rates to the actual
expense recorded in the Group’s income statement:
2009
Loss before income tax

2008

(2,208)

(12,253)

442

2,940

Effect of differences in tax rates in countries other than the Russian Federation

221

2,412

Adjustment in respect of income tax of previous years

572

407

Tax on dividend income related to dividend declared by subsidiaries

(857)

(1,175)

Loss subject to unified tax on imputed income

(364)

(808)

At Russian statutory income tax rate

Reduction in deferred taxes closing balance resulting from reduction in tax rate
Deferred tax benefit/(expense) recognised for profit distribution
Effect of non-deductible expenses

–

(322)

336

(449)

(3,130)

(4,129)

Effect of tax losses for which deferred tax assets were not recognised and other
non-temporary differences

(3,445)

(1,829)

Income tax expense reported in the consolidated income statement

(6,225)

(2,953)

ROSINTER RESTAURANTS HOLDING

Annual Report 2009

OJSC Rosinter Restaurants Holding

92

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
20. Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables consisted of the following as of December 31:
2009

2008

Trade creditors

18,120

13,595

Output VAT and other taxes payable

10,527

7,244

Accrued salaries

8,718

6,912

Advances received

1,746

1,597

Interest payable to banks
Other liabilities
Total trade and other payables

296

479

7,358

6,672

46,765

36,499

2009

2008

21. Short-Term Debt
Short-term debt consisted of the following as of December 31:
Sberbank

14,879

18,719

MDM Bank

6,250

7,500

Bank Societe General Vostok (BSGV)

5,000

5,000

Alfa Bank

3,968

–

Credit Bank of Moscow

1,450

–

Amsterdam TB

–

8,400

Credit Europe Bank

–

5,000

Other

–

102

31,547

44,721

7,103

34,293

38,650

79,014

Current portion of long-term loans (Note 17)
Total short-term debt

Sberbank
In 2008, the Group entered into a number of credit facility agreements within the limit of the
General Agreement in the total amount of 450 million Russian roubles ($15,316 at the exchange
rate at December 31, 2008) bearing interest of 12.25% per annum and maturing from February
to May 2009. During 2009, the credit facility agreements were renewed within the same limit
bearing interest from 16.25% to 17.75% per annum and maturing from February to May 2010. In
April 2010, the credit facility agreements were renewed within the same limit bearing interest from
10.75% to 11.50% per annum and maturing in February 2011.The credit facilities are secured by
a pledge of restaurant equipment in Moscow with a carrying value of $8,725. The credit facilities
were fully utilised at December 31, 2009 and 2008.
In April 2008, the Group entered into a credit facility agreement in the amount of 100 million
Russian roubles ($3,403 at the exchange rate at December 31, 2008) bearing interest of 12.75%
per annum and maturing in October 2009. The credit facility was fully repaid in 2009.

MDM Bank
In September 2008, the Group entered into an unsecured loan agreement in the amount of $7,500
bearing interest of 13.50% per annum and maturing in March 2009. In June 2009, the Group
renewed the loan agreement for the amount of $6,500 bearing interest of 16.00% per annum and
maturing in December 2010. In March 2010, the debt was fully repaid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
21. Short-Term Debt (continued)

BSGV
In July 2008, the Group entered into a revolving credit facility agreement in the amount of $5,000
bearing interest from 6.80% to 8.00% per annum and maturing in January 2010. The credit facility
was fully utilised at December 31, 2009 and 2008. In 2010, the credit facility agreement was
renewed within the same limit bearing interest of 6.40% per annum and maturing in October
2010.

Alfa Bank
In December 2009, the Group entered into a revolving credit facility agreements in the amount of
120 million Russian roubles ($3,968 at the exchange rate at December 31, 2009) bearing interest
of 14.35% per annum and maturing in June 2010. The credit facility was fully utilised at December
31, 2009. The debt was fully repaid in April 2010.

Credit Bank of Moscow
In 2009, the Group entered into a number of loan agreements in the total amount of 91 million
Russian roubles ($3,009 at the exchange rate at December 31, 2009) bearing interest of 20.00%
per annum and maturing in 2010. In 2009, the Group partially repaid the debt. In 2010, the debt
was fully repaid.

Amsterdam TB
In August 2006, the Group entered into a credit facility agreement amounting to $4,000 bearing
interest of LIBOR plus 3.70% per annum and maturing in August 2009. The loan agreement
contained covenants which limit the indebtedness of Rosinter Restaurants LLC, a Group entity. In
July 2008, the credit facility was renewed with the amount of $8,400, interest rate of 10.0% per
annum and due date of July 16, 2009. In 2009, the debt was fully repaid.

Credit Europe Bank
In March 2008, the Group entered into a revolving credit facility agreement in the amount of
$5,000 bearing interest of 9.00% per annum and maturing in September 2008. In September 2008,
the credit facility was renewed with the interest rate of 14.00% and due date of March 31, 2009.
The debt was fully repaid in March 2009.

22. Revenue
Revenue for the years ended December 31 consisted of the following
2009

2008

239,285

302,079

Revenue from canteens

8,363

12,206

Franchise revenue

6,011

8,730

Sublease services and other services

5,103

5,267

Sales of semi-finished products to franchisees

2,561

3,984

Revenue from restaurants

Other services

1,655

4,128

Total revenue

262,978

336,394
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
23. Cost of Sales
The following expenses were included in cost of sales for the years ended December 31:
2009

2008

Food and beverages

60,530

82,387

Payroll and related taxes

53,838

69,416

Rent

41,415

40,677

Restaurant equipment depreciation

10,706

10,149

Utilities

8,951

8,617

Laundry and sanitary control

3,911

4,726

Materials

3,734

6,042

Maintenance and repair services

3,259

4,576

Other services

2,889

4,612

Franchising fee

1,584

1,742

Transportation services

1,409

2,456

715

1,651

192,941

237,051

Other expenses
Total cost of sales

24. Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
The following expenses were included in selling, general and administrative expenses for the years
ended December 31:
Payroll and related taxes

2009

2008

24,013

31,614

Rent

6,919

6,848

Advertising

4,847

10,415

Other services

2,812

4,504

Depreciation and amortization

2,060

2,631

Financial and legal services

1,406

1,858

Bank services

1,059

1,109

Utilities

945

1,259

Transportation services

771

264

Materials

748

1,267

Maintenance and repair services

724

881

Laundry and sanitary control
Other expenses
Total selling, general and administrative expenses

561

927

3,498

4,434

50,363

68,011

25. Rent Expenses
The following rent expenses were included in cost of sales and selling, general and administrative
expenses for the years ended December 31:
2009

2008

Rent premises minimum lease payment

46,924

44,521

Rent premises contingent lease payment

1,410

3,004

48,334

47,525

Total rent expenses
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
26. Other (Gains)/Losses
Gains and losses for the years ended December 31 consisted of the following:
2009

2008

Other gains

1,059

1,969

Total other gains

1,059

1,969

Loss on disposal of non-current assets

3,030

2,957

Other losses

2,904

4,598

Total other losses

5,934

7,555

Other gains primarily related to insurance claims, accounts payable balances write off and other
miscellaneous gains.
Other losses mainly resulted from the closure of certain restaurants and other one-off expenses.
27. Financial (Income)/Expenses
The following (income)/expenses were included in financial (income)/expenses for the years ended
December 31:
2009

2008

Interest income

670

1,583

Total financial income

670

1,583

2009

2008

Interest expense
Increase in amounts due to partners (Note 15)
Total financial expenses

10,622

9,715

356

2,321

10,978

12,036

28. Losses from impairment of assets
Losses from impairment of assets for the years ended December 31 consisted of the following:
2009

2008

Loss from impairment of property and equipment (Note 7)

964

3,648

Loss from impairment of intangible assets (Note 6)

422

2,035

–

452

1,386

6,135

Loss from impairment of goodwill (Note 5)
Total losses from impairment of assets
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
29. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Environment
Russia continues economic reforms and development of its legal, tax and regulatory frameworks
as required by a market economy. The future stability of the Russian economy is largely dependent
upon these reforms and developments and the effectiveness of economic, financial and monetary
measures undertaken by the government.
The Russian economy is vulnerable to market downturns and economic slowdowns elsewhere in
the world. The global financial crisis has resulted in a decline in the gross domestic product, capital
markets instability, significant deterioration of liquidity in the banking sector, and tighter credit
conditions within Russia. While the Russian Government has introduced a range of stabilization
measures aimed at providing liquidity to Russian banks and companies, there continues to be
uncertainty regarding the access to capital and cost of capital for the Group and its counterparties,
which could affect the Group’s financial position, results of operations and business prospects.
While management believes it is taking appropriate measures to support the sustainability of
the Group’s business in the current circumstances, unexpected further deterioration in the areas
described above could negatively affect the Group’s results and financial position in a manner not
currently determinable.

Litigation
The Group has been and continues to be the subject of legal proceedings and adjudications from
time to time, none of which has had, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse impact on
the Group. Management believes that the resolution of all business matters will not have a material
impact on the Group’s financial position or operating results.

Russian Federation Tax and Regulatory Environment
The government of the Russian Federation continues to reform the business and commercial
infrastructure in its transition to a market economy. Russian tax and currency legislation is subject
to varying interpretations, and changes, which can occur frequently. Management’s interpretation of
such legislation as applied to the transactions and activity of the Group may be challenged by the
relevant regional and federal authorities. Recent events within the Russian Federation suggest that the
tax authorities may be taking a more assertive position in their interpretation of the legislation and
assessments and, as a result, it is possible that transactions and activities that have not been challenged
in the past may now be challenged. As such, additional taxes, fines, penalties and interest may be
assessed. Fiscal periods remain open to review by the authorities in respect of taxes for three calendar
years preceding the year of review. Under certain circumstances, reviews may cover longer periods.
However, the tax regime in Russia following the recent cases has become even less predictable.
The Group utilised certain tax planning strategies providing tax savings to the Group that reduced its
costs of operations in 2006 (refer to Note 4 - Estimation Uncertainty). Management have substantially
eliminated these tax planning strategies with effect from December 31, 2006. While management
believes that its interpretation of the relevant legislation is appropriate, these tax planning strategies
may be challenged by the Russian tax authorities. Thus, the ultimate amount of taxes, penalties and
interest assessed, if any, may be in excess of the amount expensed to date and accrued as of December
31, 2007. The amount of possible liabilities that could be incurred in the event that the tax authorities
challenge the Group’s position on certain tax matters and certain tax practices at December 31,
2007 could include the amount of the aforementioned tax savings, and fines, penalties and interest
assessed, if any. As of December 31, 2009 management believes that its interpretation of the relevant
legislation is appropriate and that it is likely that the Group’s tax position will be sustained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
29. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Operating Lease Commitments
The Group has entered into a number of commercial lease agreements for its restaurants’ premises.
The nominal amount of minimum rental payables under the non-cancellable leases at December
31 was as follows:
2009

2008

Within one year

38,967

39,703

After one year but not more than five years

96,482

112,318

More than five years

34,261

42,326

169,710

194,347

Total minimum rental payables:

30. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position comprise loans given, finance
lease liabilities, trade and other payables, bank loans, bonds and liabilities to partners. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has
various financial assets such as trade and other receivables and cash and short-term deposits, which
arise directly from its operations.
Management of risk is an essential element of the Group’s operations. The main risks inherent
to the Group’s operations include those related to market movements in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s risk management policies in relation to
these risks are summarised below.

Interest Rate Risk
The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. Trade and other receivables and payables are non-interest bearing financial assets and
liabilities. The borrowings are usually exposed to interest rate risk through market value fluctuations
of interest-bearing long-term credit facilities. The majority of interest rates on long-term credit
facilities of the Group are fixed and these are disclosed in Note 17.
The Group has no significant exposure to interest rate risk since the majority of its loans and bonds
have a clearly defined stable interest rate, other than short-term credit facilities which expose the
Group to the risk of refinancing at different interest rates (refer to Note 21). The Group does not
hedge its interest rate risk.

Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to currency risk
primarily related to its US dollar denominated intercompany balances and external debts of its
Russian subsidiaries.
The Group monitors the currency risk by following changes in exchange rates in currencies in
which its intercompany balances and external debts are denominated. The Group does not have
formal arrangements to mitigate its currency risk.
The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk since the majority of its US dollar
denominated loans are short-term credit facilities (refer to Notes 17, 21). The Group does not hedge
its foreign currency risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
30. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

Foreign Currency Risk (continued)
The table below shows the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar exchange
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax:
As at 31 December 2009

Increase/(decrease) of local
currency to US dollar

Effect on profit before
tax – gain /(loss)

US dollar/Russian rouble

14.8%

(537)

US dollar/Russian rouble

(14.8%)

537

US dollar/Kazakhstani Tenge

19.5%

482

US dollar/Kazakhstani Tenge

(19.5%)

(482)

US dollar/Ukrainian Hryvnia

31.3%

869

US dollar/ Ukrainian Hryvnia

(31.3%)

(869)

Russian rouble/Ukrainian Hryvnia

33.3%

255

Russian rouble/Ukrainian Hryvnia

(33.3%)

(255)

As at 31 December 2008

Increase/(decrease) of local
currency to US dollar

Effect on profit before
tax – gain /(loss)

US dollar/Russian rouble

(13.8%)

(237)

US dollar/Russian rouble

(31.8%)

(546)

US dollar/Kazakhstani Tenge

(16.8%)

(460)

US dollar/Kazakhstani Tenge

(29.8%)

(816)

US dollar/Ukrainian Hryvnia

33.8%

1,734

US dollar/ Ukrainian Hryvnia

(33.8%)

(1,734)

Credit Risk
The Group is not significantly exposed to credit risk as the majority of its sales are on a cash basis.
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributed to loans due from related parties and receivables. The
carrying amount of loans due from related parties and receivables, net of allowance for impairment,
represents the maximum amount exposed to credit risk. Management believes that there is no
significant risk of loss to the Group beyond the allowance already recorded.
The Group deposits available cash with several Russian banks. Deposit insurance is not offered
to banks operating in Russia. To manage the credit risk, the Group allocates its available cash to a
variety of Russian banks and management periodically reviews the credit worthiness of the banks
in which such deposits are held.

Liquidity Risk
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This
tool considers the maturity of financial assets and projected cash flows from operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
30. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)
The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, including
principal amounts and interests according to contractual terms, at December 31, 2009 and 2008
based on contractual undiscounted payments.
December 31, 2009
Long-term and short-term debt
Long-term and short-term debt due to related parties
Trade and other payables and income tax payable
Payables to related parties
Liabilities to partners
Finance leases
Total

December 31, 2008
Long-term and short-term debt
Long-term and short-term debt due to related parties
Trade and other payables and income tax payable
Payables to related parties
Liabilities to partners
Finance leases
Total

Less than
3 months

3–12 months

1 to 5 years

Total

16,996

30,350

42,086

89,432

–

98

1,010

1,108

47,820

1,676

–

49,496

1,420

11

46

1,477

–

3,397

4,149

7,546

53

114

12

179

66,289

35,646

47,303

149,238

Less than
3 months

3–12 months

1 to 5 years

Total

21,433

67,395

7,414

96,242

–

98

1,205

1,303

37,689

64

–

37,753

1,869

76

–

1,945

–

4,338

5,187

9,525

131

313

168

612

61,122

72,284

13,974

147,380

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder
value.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended December
31, 2009 and 2008.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group monitors capital using primarily a leverage ratio, which is net debt divided by EBITDA.
The Group’s policy is to keep the leverage ratio well below the covenant ratios specified in its
debt facility agreements. The Group includes within net debt loans and other forms of borrowings,
including finance leases, less cash and short-term deposits.

ROSINTER RESTAURANTS HOLDING

Annual Report 2009

OJSC Rosinter Restaurants Holding

100

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
30. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair values of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, trade and other payables and short-term debts
approximate their carrying amounts due to their short maturity. The fair value of long-term financial
instruments denominated in Russian roubles has been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows at interest rates of 16% and 17% in 2009 and 2008, respectively. The fair value of
long-term financial instruments denominated in US dollars has been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows at interest rate of 12% in 2009 and 2008:
Carrying amount
2009

2008

Fair value
2009

2008

Assets measured at fair value
Long-term loans due from related parties

4,753

875

4,797

861

Long-term receivables due from related parties

1,255

1,120

1,255

1,120

34,098

3,688

34,853

3,505

814

814

814

814

7,103

34,293

7,103

34,122

Liabilities measured at fair value
Long-term debt
Long-term debt due to related parties
Current portion of long-term debt

31. Subsequent Events
On February 17, 2010, the Group announced a secondary offering (the “Offering”) of the
Company’s ordinary shares to be completed in two steps.
In the first step of the offering, RIG Restaurants Limited, the Parent, placed 2,619,048 shares of
the Company at $10.5 per share for a total offer size of $27,500, before fees and expenses. The
Parent will use all of its net proceeds from the Offering to subscribe and pay for new shares of
the Company. In March 2010, the Group received from the Parent a bridge loan in the amount of
$26,196 bearing interest of 14.10% per annum and maturing in March 2011.
The second step of the Offering is an open subscription under Russian Law for up to 4,274,877
new shares at an offer price of $10.5 per share which was approved on April 1, 2010 by the General
Meeting of Shareholder and has been submitted on April 12, 2010 to Federal Service for Financial
Markets (FSFM) for approval. Assuming all of the new shares offered in the open subscription
are issued, the new shares will represent approximately 26.2% of the Company’s enlarged share
capital.
On March 9, 2010, during the first step of the secondary offering the Group bought back 400,000
shares from the Parent at a price of $10.50 for the amount of $4,200. These shares will be accounted
for as treasury shares and will be used to hedge future share-based compensation programmes for
management.
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